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THE COURT: Good norning. Please be seated.

W have a hearing on a notion to suppress today in
United States versus Vasquez. The case is 15CR1109.

Let's begin with appearances of counsel, please.

MR. HALL: Good norning, Your Honor. Gordon Hall
for the Governnent. Wth ne is Special Agent John Rubinstein
of the Drug Enforcenent Adm nistration.

MR. WLLSON: Your Honor, good norning. Charles
Wl lson for the Federal Defender's O fice. To ny left here
is M. Vasquez.

THE COURT: Good norning, M. WIIson,
M. Vasquez.

So then M. Hall, are we prepared to proceed or,
M. WIIlson, you wanted to say sonethi ng?

MR. WLLSON: | do have a couple of things to say.
One, froma nore general standpoint, we are having sone
di scussi ons about a possible partial resolution. This case
is conplicated a bit in that there's a potential forfeiture
i ssue down the road, but we're tal king about the possibility
of resolving the other issues with a plea. | think it would
be worth a little bit nore tine to have those di scussions
before starting the hearing.

The other issue | have to bring up is that
Ms. Vasquez was in the hospital |ast night in the energency

room
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THE COURT: I'msorry to hear that.

MR. WLLSON:. Wth Ms. Vasquez, who is in the
courtroomnow, was in the hospital last night in the
energency room She was in ny office, quite frankly, at the
end of the day. They'd conme up from Pennsyl vania. She
| ooked very unwell, lots of swelling in the throat, neck
area. She wasn't able to really speak wwth me for nore than
a few mnutes. | have now a prescription that she needs to
fill that |I borrowed fromthem and she has an infection in
her tonsils and al so been a tooth infection as well. She
earlier this norning, pursuant to the advice given, took a
Percocet. She has a prescription where she's supposed to
take five mlligrans of oxycodone by nmouth every four to six
hours as needed for pain which, according to this, will cause
sedation. | have to say she's taken sonething this norning,
alittle bit after seven o'clock. The timng to take the
next dose, which she doesn't have in her possession yet, is
probably right around the tine she would take the w tness
stand here, roughly, assum ng that each of the agents takes
about an hour. That puts us there.

So in light of that, our first request probably
woul d be for a continuance of the hearing. | know there was
di scussi ons when we were on the phone | ast week.

THE COURT: Let nme -- | obviously synpathize with

Ms. Vasquez, and |I'I|l do what | can to accommodate her, but
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the agents | think are here. Those are the gentlenen sitting
in the back, is that right, M. Hall? | know | recognize one
of themfroma trial |I've had.

MR. HALL: These guys get around, don't they. There
are two state troopers out in the hall

THE COURT: He's got all his witnesses here. So
we're going to go forward. Wiy don't we revisit sort of
where we are with M. Vasquez when the Government gets done
presenting its witnesses, unless the Government was going to
call Ms. Vasquez.

MR. HALL: | was not going to call her before the
of ficers.

THE COURT: So you're prepared to proceed with the
of ficers this norning?

MR HALL: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: So why don't we plan on that, and then
see where we are. |If Ms. Vasquez is not feeling well, she's
free to leave fromny perspective. |f she needs to go lie
down, she should do that. She should get whatever nedication
she needs. That obviously is a priority. I'mnot going to
prevent her or you fromputting in her testinony at sone
point. So whether we need to have a second day for this
hearing, we will. | propose we proceed in that nmanner and
that way allows us to be flexible. W0 knows, maybe she'l

be feeling better in a few hours. If not, that's fine.
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We'll deal with it.
MR. WLLSON: The other point, though, being if we
could have a few nore nonents to converse.

THE COURT: Look, the hearing was schedul ed for

nine. | don't mean to be difficult, M. WIIlson, but I |eft
an event to get here on tine. | spent a lot of tine
preparing for the hearing. |I'msure that M. Hall at |east

had to nake arrangenents to have his people here. You' ve had
to make arrangenents to have your people here. \Whatever
you're able to agree on, we're not going to have a change of
pl ea today, unless there's an agreenent ready to sign. |Is
t her e?

MR. WLLSON: That's what we're di scussing.

THE COURT: That may be what you're di scussing.

Here's the thing. | want to do as nuch of this hearing today
as we can. | don't have all day. So if you're saying,

Judge, we need five mnutes, ten mnutes, and we'll know one
way or the other, I'lIl give you five mnutes, ten m nutes.

If you're saying we need half an hour, 45 m nutes, the
answer's no, we're going to proceed. Wichis it?
MR WLLSON: | think in ten mnutes.
THE COURT: We'll be in recess for ten mnutes.
(Recess.)
THE COURT: Be seated, everyone. You're ready to

proceed, gentleman?
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MR, HALL: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: M. Hall.

MR. HALL: One thing I would nention, | think that
it would be appropriate for the witnesses to be sequestered.

THE COURT: | agree. So why don't -- | don't know
who your fact witnesses are. Let's nmake sure that only one
of them the person who is testifying is in the room The
case agent can stay, but other than that other fact w tnesses
should be in the hallway. 1| think that's true of
M's. Vasquez as well.

MR. WLLSON:. Right, Your Honor. So is the case
agent testifying first?

THE COURT: | don't know. | don't know what his
plan is.

MR. WLLSON: It would be our position that al
three witnesses, the only person who should be in the roomis
the one that's going to testify. So if Agent Rubinstein is
going to testify, we would ask --

THE COURT: You can put your client on, too. He has
aright to be here. So I'mgoing to let the case agent
st ay.

MR, WLLSON:. Well, ny client's rights are different
t han the case agent.

THE COURT: That's true. But I'mgoing to let the

case agent stay.
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MR. HALL: There's also a rule we get to have a case
agent .

THE COURT: Well, there's no rule. [It's the Court's
di scretion. 1In any event, I'mletting the case agent stay.

Call your first witness. All other fact wtnesses,
i ncluding Ms. Vasquez, need to step out of the courtroom

MR. WLLSON: CQur objection is just noted for the
record.

MR. HALL: The Governnent calls Christopher Wl sh

CHRI STOPHER WALSH

a wtness called by the Governnent, having been duly sworn,
was exam ned and testified on his oath as foll ows:

THE CLERK: State your nanme, city and state, spel
your |ast name, please.

THE W TNESS: Detective Christopher Walsh, WA L S
H, Hartford, Connecticut.

MR. HALL: My | proceed, Your Honor?

THE COURT: You nay.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR HALL:

Q Good norning, sir.

A Good nor ni ng.

Q Can you tell the Court how you're currently
enpl oyed?

A "' m enpl oyed by the Connecticut State Police
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presently assigned to Statew de Narcotics Task Force.
Q And do you have a rank or classification or

something with the State Police?

A A detective, sir.

Q How | ong have you been a detective?

A Approxi mately, ten years.

Q And before you were a detective, was there a tine

period during which you had served with the State Police?

A That's correct. | did about five years as a road
trooper at Troop Hin Hartford.

Q When you say road trooper, what do you nean?

A The uni form personnel on the sides of the highway
that you see when you drive around.

Q Before your time as a road trooper, do you have any
ot her prior |aw enforcenent experience?

A | did. | did about two years as a reserve officer
in a smll town in Massachusetts, Erving, Massachusetts.

Q As a reserve officer, generally what did you do,
was it general policing?

A Correct, general patrol.

Q Now, as a detective with the State Police, what is
it that you do?

A Qur job in statewi de narcotics is to identify and
investigate drug trafficking organizations within the State

of Connecti cut.
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Q And have you been assigned to statew de narcotics

the whole tine you' ve been a detective?

A That's correct.

Q So ten years | think you said?

A That's correct.

Q And while generally that's the m ssion that you

just described for the statew de narcotics group,
specifically what kinds of things did you do -- have you done
in the past ten years as a nenber of that group?

A |"ve been case officers in nunerous narcotics
i nvestigations, weapons investigations. Also, frequently
used as an undercover officer in a lot of these
i nvestigations, as well as assisting other agencies, whether
it be the DEA or the FBI or a |lot of municipal police
departnments as wel |.

Q So over the tine that you' ve been a detective, and
in connection with these narcotics investigations and weapons
i nvestigations that you participated in, have you had
occasion to make felony arrests?

A Yes, sir. Felony arrests and we do a | ot of our
own entries.

Q So being -- can you tell the Judge what you mnean
when you say entry?

A It would be the execute search warrants on

residents, cars, persons, et cetera.
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Q And al so executing arrest warrants, right?
A Correct.
Q And fromtinme to tine would that involve naking

entries into residents, cars, et cetera?

A That's correct.

Q Just so that it's clear, when you have a state
arrest warrant, do you have an understanding as to whet her
you are authorized under Connecticut |law to enter a residence

in order to execute that arrest warrant?

A A felony arrest warrant, yes, sir.

Q Do you have need any ot her process in order to do
t hat ?

A That's it, as long as you can identify that the

person is in the residence.

Q And have you had occasion to force doors with
respect to these kinds of entries that you' ve had to nake?

A Yes.

Q Have you executed arrests or search warrants in
Connecticut at residences that were, say, three famly wood
frame houses?

Hundr eds.
Have you done those in the New Haven area?
Yes.

In the Hartford area?

> O > O >

Yes.



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

11

Q In the Bridgeport area?

A Yes.

Q And you say hundreds?

A That's correct.

Q And so woul d you say then, based on that, that you

are generally famliar with apartnents in three-famly wood
frame houses in Connecticut?

A They all differ alittle bit, but, yeah, I would
say I'mfamliar with them

Q So if you have to go into one, you have a genera
i dea what you're going to find?

A Yes, sir.

Q And could you tell the Judge, roughly, how many
felony arrests you' ve nade?

A I would say hundreds, Your Honor.

Q And over the past few years with respect to your
work with the Statew de Narcotics Task Force, have you been
part of an entry teanf

A Yes.

Q And has that team been personnel wi se nore or |ess
the sane or different over those years?

A It's relatively the sane. Sone peopl e change here
and there, but the core group of people has remai ned.

Q So who is the core group of people in your entry

t eanf



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

A It would be nyself and three or four other
detectives in the office.

Q Can you nane any of thenf

A Sergeant Burns, Detective Chaprman, Detective Sean
Kraus, Detective Lena.

Q And on that entry team do you guys always do the
same specific things, each of you?

A No.

Q What do you do?

A It depends on other assignnents. So if |I'mthe
case officer, for instance, | wouldn't be utilizing the
breachi ng equi pnent to go through the door. However, if
sonebody el se was the case officer, | could certainly could
be assigned to utilize the breaching equi pnent on the door.

Q And the breachi ng equi pnent, what is that
general ly?

A It would be the ramand the Halligan tool, the

tools to either push the door in or pry the door out.

Q And you' ve operated both kinds of tools?

A. Yes, sSir.

Q And you' ve seen them operated by others?

A Yes, sir.

Q And then fromtime to tinme | think you nentioned

that you work with other |aw enforcenent agencies, right?

A. That's correct.

12
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13

So do you work with [ ocal police departnments from

time to time?

A

Q

Yes, sir.

And, al so, do you work with various federal

agencies fromtine to tine?

DEA?

A

O > O

> O >

Q

W do.

And have you worked w th DEA?

Yes, sir.

And have you perforned entries in your work with

Yes.
Can you say
| woul d say

Okay.  Now,

did you and the other

how many tines?
maybe 30 to 50 tines.
drawi ng your attention to July of 2015,

menbers of your entry team becone aware

of a DEA investigation into the suspected distribution of

heroin by Wl son and Jose Vasquez?

A

Q

Yes.

And in connection with that, do you know whet her

DEA nade a request of your organization, the State Police,

for one or nore for your State Police units to participate in

t hat

i nvestigation?

A

Q
A

Yes.
And was your

Yes.

entry teamone of those units?
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Q Now, up until the tine that arrests were nmade in
that case, did your unit -- your entry team participate in

the investigation that |'ve just asked you about?

A Not tony -- | definitely did not. | don't believe
anybody di d.

Q But you did not?

A That's correct.

Q And what was your understandi ng that your entry

team was bei ng asked to do?

A To serve a felony arrest warrant.

Q On how nmany i ndi vi dual s?

A On one.

Q Were you al so tasked with executing any federal

search warrants?

A No, sir.

Q O any state arrest or search warrants?
A No.

Q Just that one thing?

A That's correct.

Q And who was that warrant for?

A M. Vasquez.

Q This M. Vasquez here, Jose Vasquez?

A Yes, sir.

Q And prior to perform ng any tasks on that

assignnment, did you and the nenbers of your entry team attend
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a pre-arrest or pre-operation briefing?

A Yes.

Q And do you recall who addressed the pre-operation
briefing?

A | believe you were actually one of them but I

believe there were several, and | don't recall exactly who it
was.
Q Wul d they have been either Special Agents or Task

Force O ficers of the DEA?

A Yes, sir.

Q Whoever they m ght have been, they were that kind
of guy?

A Yes, sSir.

Q What sort of things did they talk
about -- w thdrawn.

Did they give you to understand your own
assi gnment, the assignnment of your entry teanf

A They do. They give an overall view of the case and
t hen each specific task.

Q Fromthe overall view of the case, as you
understood it, do you know how nany arrest warrants were to
be executed in this operation?

A | believe it was 19.

Q But 18 of those people were not your problem

right?
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A Exactly.

Q And do you know how many, if any, federal search
warrants were to be executed in connection with that
operation?

A | don'"t. | was just nore concentrated on ny
specific task.

Q And in the course of the briefing you said that you
were general ly advi sed about the nature of the

i nvestigation?

A Yes, sir.

Q Can you tell the Court what kind of investigation
it was?

A It's just a drug trafficking --

MR. WLLSON: Objection, hearsay, Your Honor

THE COURT: Well, this is a prelimnary proceeding.
So under Rule 4(a), | think it is, the Rules of Evidence
don't apply to this proceeding. That said, |I don't have a
problemif you want to nmake an objection for purposes of
notifying me about the reliability of evidence, but |I'm going
to overrul e the objection.

MR. HALL: Thank you, Your Honor. Just so it's
clear, the reason |I'm asking these questions is so the Court
can appreci ate what his understandi ng was about what he was
going to do. That's really the point of it. |'mnot

offering it for the truth.
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BY MR HALL:
Q It's a drug case?
A Yes. To ny understanding, it was a |arge scale

drug trafficking organization.

Q And was there any part of the briefing in which
ei ther the DEA personnel advised you and the other people
present about any particul ar concerns or steps you shoul d
take in approaching any of the suspects that you m ght be
having to execute process on?

A | believe they did. The particulars, |I'mnot sure.
But basically at the end of the day that anyone involved in
this type of organi zation we | ook at as a dangerous person.
Just through training and experience, the connection with
firearns is always there. So regardless of the past or what
t hey said, we would consider these persons as possibly
danger ous.

Q And is that your practice customarily when you're
doing state warrants for the State Police?

A It is.

Q In a drug case, large scale drug trafficking
or gani zati on?

A That's correct.

THE COURT: Can | just followup with one question?
MR, HALL: Yes, Your Honor, always.

THE COURT: At this briefing, did you receive any
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specific information about the defendant in that regard?

THE WTNESS: | may have, Your Honor. | just don't
recal | .
THE COURT: So as you sit here, you don't know?
THE WTNESS: That's correct.
THE COURT: CGo ahead, M. Hall.
MR. HALL: Thank you.
BY MR HALL:
Q And so were you al so given to understand that

assigned to your teamthere woul d be a DEA agent?

A That's correct.

Q And who was the DEA agent assigned to your teanf

A Speci al Agent Rubi nstein.

Q And as far as your understandi ng goes, based on the

bri efing and what other planning that you guys did before
this, before you executed the warrant, what role was Specia

Agent Rubinstein to play in this thing?

A He woul d be the case officer.
Q And what woul d that nean?
A He woul d basically be in charge of witing the

reports, seizing the evidence, et cetera.

Q As far as the operational details, that is, which
of you does what within your teamas far as the entry goes,
did he have say-so over that?

A No.
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Q And as it unfolded, did he in fact exercise say-so
over that?

A ["msorry. Could you repeat that?

Q So, for exanple, the way it actually happened,
setting aside whatever you were told at the briefing, the way
it actually happened, did Special Agent Rubinstein direct
that one of you in particular would use the ram one of you
in particular would do whatever else you had to do to get in
t he door, that kind of thing?

A No, sir.

Q Was it fair to say that that was left pretty nuch

to your discretion?

A That's correct.

Q You and the nenbers of your teanf

A That's correct.

Q Do you know whet her the State Police even advised

DEA of who on your teamwas going to use the ramor the torch
or whatever it was?

A I would doubt that. | nmean, it would be Sergeant
Burns. If anyone told them what we were going to do, it
woul d be Sergeant Burns.

Q And directing your attention to July 15th, sonetine
before 6:00, a.m, did you and the nenbers of your team and
Speci al Agent Rubinstein take any particular action with

respect to this task that you were going to do? D d you go
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anywher e?
A | believe once we left the main briefing we net at

anot her area, just our group, and went over exactly what our

pl an was.

Q And to the extent you can recall, what was your
pl an?

A | can't really say for sure. | know that, you

know, we had a particular house that they thought the target
woul d be located in, a specific vehicle that he either owned
or operated, and that woul d have been our plan, is to proceed
to that area, that house, that target residence where we

t hought he was at.

Q And that information was provided by whon?
A Speci al Agent Rubi nstei n.
Q And, again, you did not participate in the

i nvestigation before this, right?

A That's correct.

Q So this would have all been new to you?

A That's correct.

Q So you say you went to a general briefing. Ws

that different fromthe one that | was at or was it the sane
one?

A Yeah. Typically we | eave the larger briefing with
everybody there, and then you kind of find the group you're

assigned to and you have a separate smaller briefing just
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with the group that you' re assigned to.
Q I want to just go back. You' ve indicated you were

aware there were other warrants being executed that day?

A That's correct.

Q Fel ony warrants?

A Correct.

Q Were you given any information to the effect of

whet her or not there were relatives of your defendant, your

guy, M. Vasquez, who woul d be subject to arrest that norning

al so?

A Yes, sir.

Q And if you can recall, what were you told about
t hat ?

MR. WLLSON: Objection, Your Honor. Unlike the
ot her question, this doesn't seemto | end anything as to what
he was about to go do. So it seens irrel evant.

THE COURT: It's true that the rules of evidence
don't apply, but why are we getting into this? Were's it
goi ng?

MR. HALL: The offer would be that the officer and
the other nenbers of the entry team had reason to believe
that there were many ot her peopl e whose pl aces were being
visited that norning. This is all in the New Haven area,
relatively small area. | would bring out that these warrants

are supposed to be executed at the sane tinme, but they aren't
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necessarily. That there were people who were related --
THE COURT: Okay. | think I get it. [I'Il overrule
t he obj ecti on.

MR. HALL: Thank you, Your Honor.

Q Let's see. Relatives. So what about the
relatives? | think that's where we were, right?

A | nean, at the briefing there were nultiple
targets. | know sonme of which were related to M. Vasquez.

| don't recall which ones were, which ones weren't. And
there was al so sone of them who did have violence in their
past, their past police records, et cetera. However, | don't
know whi ch ones did and which ones didn't.

Q But you're clear | think in saying that you were
not given, as the Judge asked you, specific information that
M. Vasquez was known to carry a weapon, for exanple, or was
known to have engaged in gun play or sonmething in the past?

A That's correct.

Q So any concern that you would have with himwas
real |y based on your general experience with these cases?

A That's correct.

Q So having been at the general briefing and then
havi ng gone to sonme kind of rallying point with your team
what did you guys then do?

A | don't recall specifically what was di scussed, but

just generally what we do in the past is we just kind of get
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a ganme plan together before noving to whatever area we're
going to be in.
Q Did you proceed to the | ocation of the -- where you

had been provided by the DEA where this nman was thought to

be?
A Yes.
Q And what sort of -- and was this a building?
A Three-fam |y apartnent, yes.
Q Wod frane?
A Correct.
Q Had you been in that buil ding before?
A No.
Q And were you provided by the DEA or any ot her

source with sort of a floor plan of the units in that

bui | di ng?

A No.

Q Were you provided with information as to who |ived
on -- you said three-famly -- in the units where your guy

was not supposed to be?

A W really didn't have any information on where he
was in that building upon arrival.

Q And how nmany doors were you guys going to cover?
In other words, do you know how many entries there were to
t he buil di ng?

A Vell, it was a three-famly. So there would be



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

24

three entrance doors and probably three exit doors. So two
per unit is typical.

Q And, again, you didn't know that until you got
there, right?

A That's correct.

Q And so your entry team-- how many people were on
your entry teanf

A | don't know for sure. |It's typically around
five.

Q Around five. And did you all go in the same way or
did you split up to cover other doors or how did that work?
Tel | the Judge, please.

A In these cases, Your Honor, we always assign at
| east one or two people to the rear of the residence, whether
there's an exit door or not, to secure for anyone fl eeing out
t he back door and al so, you know, any evi dence, potentia
evi dence that could conme flying out the wi ndow when we nake
entry.

Q And whi ch door did you go to?

A | believe it was -- it was the front door. | went
to the door we entered.

Q Do you recall, as you're sitting here, the address
of this place?

A I don't, sir. |I'd have to |look at the police

report.
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Q Do you know -- have you been to houses on

Washi ngt on Avenue in West Haven before?

A I woul d say yes.

Q But not this one?

A Correct.

Q So you went to what would be the front door?

A Yeah, the front door where the entry team was.

Q And so when you guys got to the front door --
don't nean the front door of the unit, |I nean the front door

of the building -- did you guys, you and your entry team
have to force the entry door?

A To the common entry, | believe, was unl ocked. And
that led to a staircase that basically went to the second and
third fl oor apartnents.

Q Prior to entering the dwelling, you nmentioned
before that you had been given information about a vehicle
that M. Vasquez was said to have operated fromtine to tine.
Was there any indication of the presence of that vehicle
out si de the buil ding?

A That vehicle was parked next to the dwelling.

Q Was that vehicle parked on the street, |ike on
Washi ngton Avenue, or was it parked in a parking |lot, can you
recal | ?

A | don't recall. | don't recall where it was

parked. | knowit was in the area of that buil ding.
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THE COURT: |I'msorry, | mssed the part earlier
when you said that you had given -- been given information
about a vehicle M. Vasquez had operated. At what point did
you receive that informtion?

THE WTNESS: | believe it was at the -- | nean
really, Your Honor, | can't say. |'mnot sure when or even
if | had that information. For instance, you know, Speci al
Agent Rubinstein was in charge. As a case officer, he had
that information. Really, our job was just to kind of -- to
go with himand, you know, if |located, take himinto custody
wi t hout incident was, you know, what we were assigned to. |
may have been told about the vehicle, but | may not have
until we got there. | really can't say.

Q But at sone point before you actually entered the
building, this was in your m nd about the vehicle?

A Correct. At some point | knew, but it could have
been while we were at that building.

Q And what, if anything, did the presence of that
vehi cl e around the building nean to you?

A Vell, it gave sone credibility to whatever
i nformati on they had that he possibly could reside at that
address. So certainly seeing the car that he operated in
that area corroborated at |east sone of the information that
t hey had about his residence.

Q Now, ultimately you entered the unit that you
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t hought he was in, right?
A Correct.
Q Bef ore that happened, did you have any conversation

with any residents of the building?

A Personal ly, | did not.

Q Do you know i f nenbers of your team did?

A They coul d have, | just don't know.

Q But you have no recollection of anything |ike that
happeni ng?

A | don't.

Q So when you went in the common door, which you said

was unl ocked, can you just describe very briefly for the
j udge what you see when you go in that door?

A It's a series of staircases that |ead up. So your
first landing would be the second floor apartment, third

floor |anding would be the entrance to the third fl oor

apart nent .
Q And what's on the first floor?
A I don't -- the first floor, I"mnot sure if that

was out of that common dwelling. Sonetines the first floor
has its own entrance. But ne particular went up that common
stairway towards the second and third fl oor.

Q Did you have information that | ed you to concl ude
that the person you were seeking was upstairs in the

bui | di ng?
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A Yeah. | believe we had information that he was on
the third floor, but we weren't a hundred percent positive.

Q kay. So when you go up the staircase and you get
to the second floor |anding, can you see the second fl oor
apartnent fromthere, the entry to it?

A Yeah, the second floor appeared to be vacant.

Q Wiy do you say that?

A You could see into the apartnent and there was
nothing in the apartnent that woul d indicate that sonebody
was |iving there.

Q How coul d you see into it?

A | believe the doorknob and the dead assenbly were
m ssing fromthe door

Q So how did that |et you see into the apartnent?

A You coul d see through the door, through the hole in

t he door where the doorknob assenbly was.

Q They' re just gone?
A They were gone, correct.
Q So you could see right intoit. And then having

seen that, did you -- what did you guys do?

A We then proceeded up to the third floor.

Q And was there a fourth floor?

A No, sir.

Q So when you get to the third floor, was there a

| andi ng or not?
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A Yes.

Q So can you just describe for the judge what that
| ooks like? You come up the stairs, you get to the top,
you're at a landing. How big is the |anding, where's the
door, that type of thing, to the extent you renenber?

A To be honest, | can't renenber the size of the
landing in this particular apartnent. | nmean, | can tell you
what they typically are.

THE COURT: Let's stick with what you renenber

A | renmenber the | anding and the door going into what
was clearly the third fl oor apartnent.

Q Let nme ask you this. When you guys are going to go
t hrough a door, do you guys go through the door |ike four

abreast or sonething like that or do you go nore like in a

line?
A In a line.
Q And you guys call that somethi ng when you're right

in front of the door?
A A st ack.
Q A stack. And if you can recall, you forned a stack
when you got up to that third floor door?
Yes, we did.
Were you standing on the stairs still?

I'mnot sure.

o »>» O >

You may have been on the stairs or you may have
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been on the | andi ng?

A Yeah. Depending on the size of the landing. |If
you were stacked up, | nmean, if sonmebody had to go down a
step to fit on a landing, it's certainly possible, but I'm
not sure.

Q So when you guys got to the door, where were you in

t he stack?

A " mnot sure.

Q Were you at the front?

A Possi bl y.

Q Did you have the entry equi pnent, the ram torch

what ever it was?

A I"mnot sure if | did or not.

Q And before taking any action with respect to the
door of the apartnent, did you guys do anything, have any
tal k or whispering anong yoursel ves, you guys ready or

anything like that?

A No.
Q You guys have worked together before, right?
A Yeah. W' ve done this so many times there's really

no di scussi ons once you're at the door.
Q So once you were at the door, what happened?
A Once we were at the door, | specifically recal
havi ng to pause at the door.

THE COURT: Having to pause?
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THE WTNESS: Correct. | renenber having to pause
at the door, trying to get confirmation that that was the
apartnent that he was in. | know the U S. Mrshals were
involved to a certain extent about pinpointing his |ocation
t hrough, you know, sone sort of technology that |'m not
really famliar with. However, you know, we were 99 percent
sure that he was in that apartnent due to the second fl oor
being enpty. This one was clearly occupied. There was mai
in the mail box, et cetera, not necessarily with his nanme on
it, but it appeared to be occupi ed.

Q Was that mailbox on the third floor or was it down
by the entry?

A | believe it was up on the third floor, but there
was al so --

THE COURT: And there was nail in the mail box, did

you say that?

A That's correct. Not specifically with his nane on
it.

Q Did you check that? Are you saying that there was
none with his nane or you're saying it was mail, | don't
know?

A We checked it. There was none with his nanme on it.

And we were just waiting for confirmation that that was his
apartnent. At that tine | heard novenent within the

apart ment .
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Q Let's stop. The confirmation, how would that cone
to you?

A That came fromthe U S. Mrshals.

Q But how woul d you get it? |I'msorry. Wthdrawn.

Did you guys have radios with you or sonething?
A That's correct.
Q So you guys are in contact with, say, Special Agent

Rubi nstein, for exanple?

A I wasn't necessarily nyself, but sonebody was.
Q Sonmebody was. And then with the Marshal s?
A Correct.

THE COURT: Could you have himidentify who actually

was present on the landing, just the whole teamat this

poi nt ?
MR HALL: | tried. | think he --
THE COURT: Maybe | mssed that or maybe he didn't
remenber .
MR, HALL: | mght have forgotten to ask. |I'm
sorry.
Q So who was on the | anding or nmaybe on the stairs a

little bit? Wo was out there?
A It was nme, Sergeant Chuck Burns, Detective Chaprman
and nysel f.
THE COURT: Three peopl e?

THE WTNESS: | believe so, Your Honor. There may
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have been sonebody else. | would have to refer to the
report.

Q Was Speci al Agent Rubinstein on the landing with
you guys?

A | believe Special Agent Rubinstein was covering the

back of the residence.

So he was not on the landing with you guys?

A Correct.

Q And you don't recall who had the ram or whatever it
was ?

A | don't.

Q And you said you were waiting for confirmation?

A Correct.

Q Did you get that?

A Yes.

Q And then what happened?

A At that point -- at that point we ended up hearing

or | heard novenent within the apartnent, and that's when we

deci ded to breach the door.

Q Was there any time when any of you knocked on the
door ?
A Yes.

Q When did that happen?
A We knocked on the door just prior to breaching. So

we heard commotion in the apartnent, we knocked on the door.
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W waited a short anmount of tine.

Q Let me stop you there. Did you knock on the door
or did sonmebody el se?

A | knocked on the door. | knocked on the door as
soon as | heard the novenent inside the apartnent.

Q And di d anybody say anything fromyour end, you

guys?
A. Yes, sir.
Q What ?
A We announced our purpose and authority, just |ike

we always do. So it would be state police.

Q What did you state?

A State police with an arrest warrant.

Q When you say you knocked on the door, you did that,
right?

A | did.

Q Did you use your hand or did you use anything
el se?

A Hand, fi st.

Q And so maybe -- could you denonstrate by using that

pi ece of wood that's in front of you there how you knocked on

t he door.
A (Wtness conplies.)
Q And did you make your announcenent before or after

you knocked?
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A After.
Q And after knocking and sayi ng what you said, did

anybody open the door?

A No.

Q Di d anybody conme to the door?

A No.

Q Did you hear anynore noise inside?

A Yes.

Q And | et ne just make sure that | understand this.

You heard noi se before you even knocked?

A Correct.
Q What did that nean to you?
A To nme that nmeant that sonebody inside was either

attenpting to flee or destroy or hide evidence.

Q And when you heard noi se after you knocked and
announced, what did that nean to you?

A Sane t hing.

Q Now, can you say how | ong before knocki ng, how | ong
you were on the l|anding, can you say?

A I would say at |east a couple of m nutes.

Q And you're out there | ooking at the mail box and al
that stuff. And can you say after you knocked or banged,
really, and yelled or announced your presence and purpose,
how | ong before you guys breached the door?

A | would say nmaybe -- maybe 10 to 20 seconds.
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And during that 10 to 20 seconds, you continued to

hear noi se inside the apartnent?

A

Q

about that noise that you thought about the noise that you

That's correct.

Is it fair to say that you thought the sanme thing

heard before you began to knock?

o »>» O >

el se?

A

Q

A

Q
standi ng i

A

Q

A

apart ment

Q

Correct.

And do you recall who -- was it a ramor what was

It was a ram
And do you know who swung the ranf?
| don't.

Coul d have been you, could have been sonebody

Correct.

Did the door give way?

Yes.

And when the door gave way, was there anybody
n the doorway?

No.

What did you guys do?

We then entered, spread out, and searched the
for persons.

So how many people are we tal king about? You,

Chapman, Burns. Anybody el se at that point upon making
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entry?
A | believe that was it.
Q So when you say you spread out, can you recall how

t hat happened? Wt hdrawn.

Where did you go?

A | went to the bedroom

Q So when you wal k into the apartnent, what's
t here?

A The apartnment -- | don't know the specific |ayout
of the apartnent. | didn't look at anything prior to this.

But | do renenber it was a snall apartnment and there was very
little furnishings in the apartnent.
Q So the roomthat you found yourself in when you got

to the other side of the door, was there any furniture in

t hat roonf

A A bed.

Q I nean, you just wal ked in, there's a bed right
t here?

A Upon entry it was just -- | don't know -- upon

entry | would assune it was the living roomor the kitchen.

It wasn't the bedroom But | can't say for sure what it

was.
Q What ever that was, are you saying there was a bed
in there?
A No, sir.



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

38

Q Was there any furniture in that room whatever it

was, when you first wal ked into the apartnent? |If you

remenber. |f you renenber.
A | don't renmenber exactly what was in the apartnent,
but | do renenber it was very limted furnishings. It was

uncommmonl y enpty.

Q And you went to the bedroom you say?

A Correct.

Q How di d you know where the bedroom was?

A | didn"t. | just -- one person goes right, one

person goes |left, one person goes straight, and that's just
where | ended up.
Q That's what | was getting at actually. Wich way

did you go, left, right, or straight?

A | don't recall.

Q You found yourself in a bedroonf

A Correct.

Q Can you say how nany steps? | don't nean renenber

count the stens, but how far was it from where you cone into
the apartnment until you're in the bedroon?

A | really couldn't say. |If | try to put a nunber on
it 1'"d really be guessing, but it was a small apartnent.

Q kay. So you went in the bedroom How did you
know it was a bedroonf?

A When | entered the doorway of the roomthere was a
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bed in it.
Q Was the door closed before you entered it?
A "' mnot sure.
Q You went in there?
A Correct.
Q When you went in there, what were you wearing

general | y?

A I woul d have been wearing a State Police tacti cal
vest .

Q Tactical vest being, does that have sone sort of
protective property?

A Yes, sir. It's a ballistic vest with police
mar ki ngs on both the front and the back.

Q What col or were you generally dressed in?

A In black with bright yellow lettering across the
front and back.

Q Did you have anything on your head?

A I"mnot sure. Nothing covering nmy face certainly,

but I don't knowif | had a ball cap on or a winter cap.

Q Not hi ng covering your face?

A That's correct.

Q You didn't have a hel net on your head?
A No, sir.

Q Maybe a ball cap or sonething?

A Correct.
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j eans.

Q
A

And you had this ballistic vest on?

Correct.

Attired in black, yes?

Probably in my specific case woul d have been bl ue

So the ballistic vest, what col or

It's like a really dark Navy bl ue/black vest with

bright yellow lettering on it.

Q

o » 0 » O > O > O > O P

And then you' d have jeans on?
Correct.

What ki nd of shoes?

Ti mber | and wor k boots.

Heavy shoes?

Correct.

Did you have a weapon?

Yes, sir.

What ki nd of weapon did you have?
645 cal i ber sem -automati c.
That' s a handgun?

Correct.

is that?

40

By the tine you entered the bedroom had you drawn

t hat weapon?

A

Q

Yes.

How were you carrying that weapon as you entered

t he bedr oonf
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A

Q
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In a ready position, out in front of ny body.

Coul d you denonstrate for the judge what that would

(Wtness conplies.)

And the other guys, Chapman and Burns, do you

remenber exactly what they were wearing?

A

Simlar vests. As far as their pants or shoes, |

couldn't say for sure.

Q
A
Q
A

What about weapons?
Sane weapons.
And were they unhol stered, do you know?

| believe they would. They shoul d have been.

woul d assunme they did have them unhol stered, but | couldn't

say for sure.

Q

Q

> O > O >

Because you were busy?

Correct.

When you went into the bedroom you saw a bed?
Correct.

What el se did you see?

M. Vasquez sitting on the bed.

Were you able to identify himat that point as

M. Vasquez or what?

A

Q
A

No.
So male sitting on the bed?

Correct.
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Q And what el se did you see?

A | believe there was a female in the bed as well.
Q Was he on the bed or in the bed?

A He was on the bed.

Q And what about her?

A I"'mnot really sure.

Q But she was in the roonf

A Yeah.

Q Was there anybody else in the roon?

A No.

Q Did you point your gun at thenf

A Yes.

Q And did you say anything to thenf

A Yes.

Q What ?

A Again, | don't know ny exact words to them but

it's pretty much the sanme thing every tine we do this. So |
woul d have told him State Police, get on the ground, show ne
your hands.

Q And when you say those things, when you said them
in this case, would that have been in a conversational tone
or would that have been in a nore urgent tone?

A Yeah, it would have been nore like a yell or a
holler. It would have been a fairly intense situation.

Q And did the two people in the room the nmale and
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the female, did they conply with your commands?

A Yeah, | believe they did.
Q Was there any resistance offered at all by thenf
A Not that | can recall, no.
Q And while you were doing this, the other guys
wer e?
A Wiile I"'mdoing this, the other guys are searching

ot her areas of the house for people. They end up |ocating
anot her person.

THE COURT: You're testifying as to your
understanding as to general practice. oviously, you didn't
see what they were doing.

THE W TNESS: Exactly, Your Honor. But they would
just fan out and go through the whol e house to nmake sure if
there were any other persons within the house they'd be
properly detai ned.

Q And why would that they do that? Not the detaining

part. Wy would they | ook around for other people?

A Just for safety issues.
Q Safety for whonf
A Safety for both the officers and potentially for

them as wel | .
Q Because whet her they had their guns out or not,
they were arned, right?

A. That's correct.
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Now, ultimately was the male identified?
Yes.

And who was he identified as?

M. Vasquez.

And was the fenmale identified?

She was.

As whom if you know?

I'd have to refer to the report.

o » 0 » O > O > O

As far as you know -- withdrawn.
And the other person that was found in the

resi dence, was that person identified as far as you know?

A Yes.
Q Do you know who he was?
A | don't.
THE COURT: I'msorry. There was a third person

found in the residence?

MR HALL: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: | have the question, and the other
person that was found in the residence, was that person
identified as far as you know? | guess | mi ssed the earlier
guestion and answer when you said soneone was identifi ed.
Maybe you can take himthrough that.

MR HALL: | had asked the w tness whet her
ultimately the nale that he found in the bedroom was

identified and that was M. Vasquez.
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THE COURT: And the female was identified. And

t hen?

MR, HALL: He doesn't renenber who.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. HALL: And there was a third person he
ment i oned.

THE COURT: Let's hear nore the circunstances under
whi ch he saw that third person because this is news to ne..
MR HALL: I'd like totry to get the circunstances
if I could turn this thing on.
THE COURT: You've shown these to M. WIIson?
MR HALL: Yes.
THE COURT: You' ve seen the pictures?
MR. WLLSON: He's sent ne pictures before.
MR HALL: |'msorry, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Quite all right.
BY MR HALL:
Q So that third person who was identified, you don't
know who it was?
A That's correct.
Q But do you know whether either the fenale or that
third person had outstanding warrants that norning?
A Yeah. To ny understanding, they didn't. Just
because | know they weren't taken into custody.

Q So now to go back to the bedroomw th M. Vasquez.
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How was M. Vasquez dressed?

A He was in his underwear, | believe.

Q Did he have a top on?

A "' mnot sure.

Q But he had underwear on the bottonf

A Correct.

Q And the femal e, how was she dressed?

A " mnot sure.

Q And you had said to the judge a m nute ago that

46

what you yelled to themwas |et nme see your hands, get on the

floor. So did these two people get on the floor?

A Again, I'mnot positive. And |I'mnot sure that's

exactly what | said to them So it could have been, you
know, show ne your hands, keep your hands. You know,

what ever the conmand was, you know, they did conply. But

I''m

not exactly sure what | said. So I'mreally not totally sure

what they did, whether they actually got down on the fl oor
just showed their hands where they sat.

Q And did you at sone point put handcuffs on
M. Vasquez?

A Not a hundred percent sure if it was ne or if
sonmebody el se canme in to assist ne, but at sone point as a
group sonebody covered them whil e sonebody handcuffs them

Q But you were there. Is it fair to say that you

were in the room in the bedroom when M. Vasquez got

or
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handcuf f ed?

A That's correct.

Q And to your recollection, was the female al so
handcuf f ed?

A | couldn't say for sure on her.

Q Wul d that be typical?

A It could go either way in that situation.
Sonetines a female, if they're not known to be directly an
influence in the case or the organization, sonetines they'l
get treated with quite a bit of |eniency and won't be

handcuffed. But | couldn't say specifically in this case.

Q So she nmay have been, she may not have been?
A That's correct.
Q But these people, to the extent they were

handcuf fed, that happened in the bedroonf
A That's correct.
Q Was there -- did any of you indicate to M. Vasquez

t hat he was under arrest?

A Not until he was positively identified.

Q How di d that happen?

A | really couldn't say for sure. | believe he m ght
have said -- you know, we asked himhis nane and he said it,
and he didn't lie. But at that point, | nean, sonebody woul d

have sonehow confirnmed it was him

Q Goi ng back to getting the cuffs on M. Vasquez and



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

48

maybe the female. Were you joined at sone point in the

bedr oom by ot her personnel ?

A Yes, sir.

Q And do you know who joined you in the bedroonf

A | can't say for sure who joined in in the bedroom
At this point people are starting -- who were covering

exterior doors and et cetera are starting to filter in now
t hrough the door, because they can hear that we've gai ned

entry and have nmultiple people detained. So at this point
people start filtering in.

MR. WLLSON:. bjection. The reason | raise it is
can't tell if the witness is describing how things generally
wor ked.

THE COURT: Let's clarify that, M. Hall.

Q What you just said to the Judge, is that what
happened or is that what usually happens?

A That is what happened. Eventually everybody nade
their way into the apartnent. | can't tell you the exact
time they filtered in, but they nost certainly filtered in.

Q So you -- handcuffs were applied to at | east one of
t hese two people and you -- did you ask M. Vasquez, aside
fromhis identity, did you ask M. Vasquez any questions at
that point? You?

A No.

Q Do you recall if anybody el se asked M. Vasquez
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any questions at that tinme aside fromhis identity?

A No.
Q You don't recall?
A Nobody asked hi m questi ons, because at that point

our job was done. So we thought. He said his nane was our
target. He was cuffed. Qur job was over.

Q Wth respect to the security sweep you descri bed
before, aside fromthat other male who was found, was anybody

el se found?

A No, sir.

Q Were any weapons found?

A No.

Q Just -- okay. And do you know if at sone point

Speci al Agent Rubinstein appeared in the apartnent?

A He did.

Q Can you say when that occurred?
A | can't say specifically, no.

Q. To your recollection -- okay.

So after you had M. Vasquez in custody, what was
t he pl an?

A The plan was to get clothes on himand turn him
over to DEA, however they wanted to transport himand process
hi m

Q Li ke you said, your job was done basically?

A. That's correct.
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Q Di you have to do with the processing?
A No.
Q And you nentioned getting clothes on him Wy do

you do that?

A Just because he needs sone clothing on, you know,
he's going to be wal ki ng out si de.

Q And how did you arrange that wwth M. Vasquez?

A | asked M. Vasquez which clothes he wanted. He of
course was handcuffed to the back, and he just kind of nodded
towards there was a pair of pants hangi ng over a | aundry
basket in the bedroom

Q Can you just show the Judge how he nodded so that

he can see?

A (Wtness conplies.)
Q And so --
MR WLLSON. | didn't catch that.

THE COURT: Wy don't you stand up.
(Wtness conplies.)
THE COURT: So |'mclear, when this happened, he was
cuf fed behind his back?
THE WTNESS: That's correct.
Q So then you said you took that as an indication
toward pants that were on the | aundry basket?
A Correct.

Q Where was the | aundry basket?
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| believe the |laundry basket was -- it was in the

| believe it was up against the wall adjacent to

When he did, that when he gestured |ike you just

showed the Judge, could you tell what he was gesturing to?

o >» 0 » O > O > O > O P

>

before --
to him
Q
A
t he pants
Q
A

The | aundry basket.

So you could tell?

Yes.

Did you ook at the laundry after he gestured?
Sur e.

Did you see a pair of pants?

Anmongst ot her cl ot hes, yeah.

What did you do?

Pi cked up the pair of pants.

Then what did you do?

Turned them upsi de down and shook t hem

Way did you do that?

That's just what we always do. You shake them out

the pants have to be checked before you give them

Wy ?

To nake sure there's no weapons or contraband in
bef ore you hand them over to hinf

Wiy don't you just reach in the pockets?

Qur reasoning is just that there's always a
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possibility of uncapped needles in the pockets of any
clothing you pick up. So typically we give them a good shake

bef ore we go sticking our hands in the pockets.

Q When you gave the pants a shake, were you in the
bedr oonf

A Yes.

Q And did you shake them over the bed or over the

floor or what? Tell the Judge what you renenber.
A | don't really recall whether if was over the bed.
| believe it was over the floor, but | couldn't say with a

hundred percent certainty.

Q When you shook the pants, did anything cone out?
A Yes.

Q What cane out?

A Cash and a bag.

Q Let ne just pause here and show you a coupl e of

phot ographs which I will mark as they cone in if they do.

THE COURT: You'll mark as what?

MR HALL: | will mark themif they cone in as they
do. | don't actually have stickers though.

THE COURT: Do we have stickers for hinf? W have
stickers for you. You want to just mark themfor ID.  How
many do we have?

MR HALL: 8.

THE COURT: WMark those Governnment's 1 through 8 for
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MR HALL: |'msorry, Your Honor, an oversight.
THE COURT: That's all right.
Q Just to go back a little bit. 1'mgoing to show

you what's been marked as Governnent's Exhibit 1. And | ask

you -- can you see that on the screen?
A Yes.
Q Can you tell nme who that is?
A Appears to be M. Vasquez.
Q M. Vasquez?
A Correct.
Q And show ng you Governnent's Exhibit Nunmber 3. Can

you tell me who that is? Can you see?
A | can. There's a glare, but | can see. |'m

assuming that's the female in the apartnment. To be totally

honest with you, | don't recogni ze her.
Q So you don't know?
A | don't.
Q And showi ng you Governnent's Exhibit Nunmber 2, do

you know who that is?
A Upsi de down.
THE COURT: That would be really hard to figure
out .
THE WTNESS: Unfortunately, that doesn't clear it

up either. To be honest, Your Honor, it's probably the third
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guy.
THE COURT: But you're not able to say?
THE WTNESS: That's correct. | don't know who he
was.
Q Fai r enough. Now, when you said you shook the

pants, there were drugs and noney that you saw?

A Correct.

Q " m going to show you Governnent's Exhibit Nunber 4
for identification. Can you tell us what that appears to you
to be?

A The sack full of drugs.

MR, HALL: At this point |1'd offered Governnent's
Exhi bit 1 and Exhibit 4.

THE COURT: So when you say 4 is the sack of drugs,
can you just be a little bit nore specific?

THE W TNESS: Yes, Your Honor. This is -- the along
with the currency, this is what cane out of the pants pocket
when | shook it.

MR. WLLSON: Can | ask a question, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Sure.

BY MR W LLSON

Q So earlier when you testified you said you shook the
pants, out cane cash and a bag?

A Correct.

Q So that's the bag?
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A Correct.

MR. WLLSON: Nothing further.

THE COURT: 1 and 4 wll be full.

MR. HALL: Thank you, Your Honor.

(Wher eupon, Governnent's Exhibits Nunber 1 and 4
were marked in full.)

BY MR HALL:

Q Now, with respect to what's pictured in Exhibit 4,
that's the bag, right, that cane out of the pants?

A Correct.

Q When the bag cane out of the pants, did the bag
remai n cl osed?

A | believe it remained closed, but it wasn't zip
tied shut. So, in other words, when you picked it up you
could clearly see what was inside of it.

Q When the bag fell out of the pants, were any of the
drugs visible to you?

MR WLLSON: | think that question's been asked and
answered a second ago.

THE COURT: Well, 1'd like to hear it. 1'mnot sure
it was. |1'd like to hear the answer. So I'mgoing to
overrul e that.

A | can't say for sure if it was or not, if you could
see it while it was lying on the floor.

Q The cash that came out, was that in the bag?
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| believe the cash was separate.
And you coul d see the cash?

Correct.

o > O »F

At what point --

THE COURT: |I'msorry. Just so I'mcrystal clear.
What | heard you say is the pants drop on the floor, not sure
if you could see drugs at that point, could see cash at that
point. Don't let ne put words in your nmouth. [Is that
accurate?

THE WTNESS: Correct.

MR. WLLSON: Your Honor, I'mjust going to note the
records should speak for itself in terns of what he said
al ready, because ny nenory is a little bit different.

THE COURT: That's fine. 1It's nmy job to decide the
issue and | want to make sure | understand what the w tness
testinmony is. The purpose of the question was to nmake sure
that | did. Go ahead.

Q When you saw t hese objects, however they were cone

out on to the floor, what if anything did you do?

A At that point | searched the pants by hand.

Q And did you find anything else in the pants?

A No.

Q And was anybody else in the roomwhen this
happened?

A Yes.
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Q Who?

A | believe Sergeant Burns was in the room

Q Do you know whet her Speci al Agent Rubinstein was in
t he roonf

A I"mnot sure if he was or not.

Q And so this bag is on the floor and cash is on the

floor. Didyou just leave it there?

A | picked it up

Q Bot h?

A Correct.

Q So you picked up the cash and the bag?

A Correct.

Q When you picked up the bag, what could you see?

A The gl assi ne bags of heroin.

Q And how coul d you see then? | nean, describe to
t he Judge -- excuse nme -- but the bag appears to have a draw
string onit. | want you to describe for the Judge what you

saw when you picked up the bag exactly.

A Your Honor, when you picked up the bag, you know,
whet her they were spilled out or not like this, | couldn't
say. Wen | picked up the bag, the bag was not seal ed shut.
So, in other words, w thout manipul ating the bag, you could
see inside this bag. And through training and experience
nmyself could clearly identify the folds inside is comobn with

gl assi ne bags of heroin.



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

58

Q And did you say anything to any of your coll eagues
at that point?

A Yes.

Q What did you say?

A | would have said to Sergeant Burns was right next
to me that, hey, he's got drugs and cash here.

Q And did you have occasion to at any point after
that | ook at the |laundry basket?

A | personally did not.

Q So then what happened to this stuff that's pictured

in Exhibit 4 plus the cash?

A This was turned over to Special Agent Rubi nstein.
Q So at sone point then Rubinstein had joined you?
A That's correct. At sone point he did join us. The

exact timng is unknown, but he did join us in that bedroom
that's correct.

Q Wul d you tell the Judge, | nean, really roughly
how | ong you were in the apartnent?

A It was a relatively short period of tine. | would
say total fromentry to exit couldn't have been nore than
maybe -- nmaybe 25 m nutes or so.

Q And you nentioned that there was not furniture in
that first roomthat you entered when you went in?

A Limted furniture, if any, correct.

Q Limted, if any. Watever you renenber. And in
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t he bedroomthat you went into you said there was a bed,

right, because the guy was sitting on it?

A That's correct.

Q Do you renenber any other furniture in that roonf

A Again, | don't know specifically, but | renmenber
that roomas well, it had a bed in it, but there was [imted

furniture for a normal bedroom
Q Aside fromthe clothing that was in that basket,

was there any other clothing that you saw in that roonf

A Not in ny view

Q Did you have occasion to go into any of the other
roons?

A No.

Q Sois it fair to say that you don't know how t hey

were furnished?
A The other -- just the roons that | went through I

can speak for, correct.

Q Whi ch woul d just be the entry room and that
bedr oonf
A Correct.
Q And did you, you know, seize the drugs, take the

drugs into custody or package themin any way or did someone
el se do that?
A No, Speci al Agent Rubi nstein would have been in

charge of that.
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Q So you're standing there with the bag. You say you
see gl assi ne envel opes or folds in it that you recognize as
typi cal of heroin packaging, right?

A Correct.

Q What did you do with the bag?

A I woul d have handed themto Special Agent
Rubi nst ei n.

Q Do you know what he did with themafter that?

A | believe himand Sergeant Burns sealed themin

evi dence bags.

Q Did you see themdo that?

A | was probably there, but | couldn't say
specifically that | recall it.

Q | wanted to know what you saw. That's really what

the point is. So you mght have seen it, you don't

remenber ?

A That's correct.

Q You know t hat happened because that's what happens,
correct?

A Correct.

Q And did you Mrandize any of the subjects, the two

mal es and female, M. Vasquez, the fenmale, and the mal e?
A No.
Q Did anybody M randi ze any of themin your

presence?
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Sergeant Burns M randi zed M. Vasquez.

Did that happen before or after the drugs were

di scover ed?

A

Q

Bef or e.

And was, to your recollection, after that, did

anybody question M. Vasquez?

A Not to ny know edge.

Q If they did, you didn't see it?

A That's correct.

Q And it may not have even happened?

A That's correct.

Q And before he was Mrandi zed, was he questioned at
all? | asked you before about identification, but now I'm
saying at all.

A Just about his identification.

Q And who did that?

A ' m not sure who asked hi mwhat his nanme was.

Q But, again, he was cooperative with you guys?

A Correct.

Q Did there conme a tinme when you becane aware that
addi ti onal drugs had been discovered in the apartnent?

A Yes.

MR WLLSON:. |I'msorry. Could I have that question
repeat ed?

Q Did there conme a tinme when you becane aware that
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addi tional drugs were discovered in the apartnent?

A Yes.

Q Did you di scover thenf
A No.

Q Do you know who di d?

MR, WLLSON: bjection. | assunme he's just asking
what he was told.
MR. HALL: No, I'masking --
THE COURT: Overrul ed.
Q Did you see who discovered the drugs? O
di scovered any drugs? |'msorry.
THE COURT: Now I'm confused. Let's start again.
MR HALL: I'mtrying to nmake it specific.
Q Did you see who discovered any drugs aside fromthe
ones that you found?
A Yeah. | believe it was Special Agent Rubinstein
and Sergeant Burns.
Q And do you know -- did you see where they were

di scover ed?

A In the laundry basket.

Q Did you see that?

A Yes.

Q Did you see the drugs in place in the |laundry
basket ?

A I didn't, no.
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Did you see the drugs after -- did you see any

drugs after they had been renoved fromthe | aundry basket?

A

Q

Yes.

I"m going to show you what's been marked as

Government's Exhibit 7, and ask you if you can tell the Judge

what t hat

A

>

of it.

> O > O

i S?

Pl asti c bag containing suspected heroin.

And why do you say suspected heroin?

You just can tell by the color and the consistency
You can?

Yes, sir.

So you handl ed heroin before?

Unfortunately, about every day.

MR HALL: 1'd offer that, Your Honor.

MR. WLLSON:. Your Honor, 1'd agree to it for the

limted purposes of this hearing.

in full.)

THE COURT: That's all it's comng in for.
MR. WLLSON. Just meking sure.

THE COURT: This is Governnment Nunber 77?
MR HALL: 7.

THE COURT: Governnent 7 will be full.

(Wher eupon, Governemmt's Exi bit Nunber 7 was marked

MR HALL: Thank you, Your Honor.
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Q Directing your attention to sort of the bottom half
of the photograph which I'mindicating. You said it |ooks
i ke heroin, right, the whole thing?

A Correct.

Q Can you detect any difference in texture or col or
bet ween what's at the bottom half of the photograph and
what's at the sort of top half of the photograph?

A Yes.

Q And in your experience, can you describe any
significance to the difference that you see?

MR. WLLSON: Your Honor, I'mgoing to object. More

foundati on, what the rel evance of today's hearing is.

MR. HALL: [I'll wthdrawit. It's okay.
Q This | ooks Iike heroin to you?
A Correct.
Q And was M. Vasquez renoved fromthe apartnent?
A Yes.
Q Did you participate in that?
A | would say yes, but | couldn't say for sure. But

| was certainly there.

Q And when he left the apartnent, to your
recol l ection, was he wearing the pants that he had i ndicated
he wanted to wear?

A No.

Q And why not ?
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A Because they were too large. The waistband was too
| arge. He couldn't wear them w thout a belt.

Q And so why is that significant? Wy is that a
problemthat he can't wear them w thout a belt?

A Because the pants were too large. Wthout the belt

they woul dn't stay up.

Q Why couldn't he have a belt?

A They won't let himhave a belt in any |ockup
facility.

Q So then the pants were not suitable, is that fair
to say?

A Correct.

Q So was there other clothing that he wore?

A Yeah, shorts. | believe he left in shorts.

Q And where did those conme fronf

A "' massum ng the sanme | aundry basket, but | don't

know for sure.

Q Did you get the shorts?

A " mnot sure.

Q Did anything else -- after all of the heroin was
di scovered, did anything else -- was there anything el se

di scovered in the apartnent of investigative significance as
far as you know?
A As far as | know, no.

Q Wthin the apartnment, as far as you know, did



[ERN

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

66

anybody -- well, w thdrawn.
So then he was brought out of the prem ses, but you

don't renenber if you participated in that?

A Correct.

Q Did you help transport hin®

A No.

Q Did you bring him when he was outside the

apartnent, did you bring himto any transport vehicle,
anything like that?

A That's the part I'mnot sure if it was ne.
Sonmebody woul d have. Wether it was me or not, |I'mnot sure
if | was the one that escorted himfromthe door to the car.

Q And aside fromthe identity question that you
already told us about, you never asked M. Vasquez any

guestions yoursel f?

A No.
Q Now, you nentioned Trooper Chapman, right?
A Correct. Detective.

THE COURT: How do you spell the |ast nanme?
THE WTNESS: Your Honor, it's CHAP MAN
Is he on the entry teanf
He is.
So he went into the apartnent with you guys?

Correct.

o >» O >» O

And he woul d have been one of the three that went



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

67

left, right, or straight, correct?
A Correct.
Q Did there conme a tinme while you were in the

apartnent that he left the apartnent?

A "' mnot positive.

Q Does Detective Chapman have custody of a dog?
A Yes.

Q And that's like a -- what kind of dog is that?
A It's a narcotics detecting canine.

Q Did the narcotics detecting cani ne acconpany the

entry teaminto the apartnent when you guys first went in?

A No.
Q Where was the dog, if you know?
A The dog woul d have been in his car. |In Detective

Chapman' s vehi cl e.
Q In Detective Chapnan's car, yes. And so at sone

point did the dog enter the prem ses as far as you know?

A Yes.

Q Do you know why? First, that's a yes or no
guesti on.

A Vell, I don't -- let ne just explain.

THE COURT: The question is do you know why the dog
ent er ed.
A The -- other than entry, the dog goes everywhere

with Detective Chapnan
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Q They have a rel ationship?

A Any cani ne handl er.

Q And so typically what do you guys do with that
dog?

A Typically they' Il utilize the dog to performa
search of the residence.

Q In this case, did that dog performa search of the
resi dence?

A No.

Q In fact, by the tinme the dog got there, what was

the state of your operation in that apartnent?

A By the tine the dog was there we were ready to
| eave.

Q And to your -- are you famliar with that dog?

A Yes.

Q Have you seen that dog alert to the presence of

drugs and stuff |ike that?

A Yes.

Q Aside fromas mght regard anything that m ght have
been found, did you see that dog alert to anything in the

apartnent ?

A No.

Q And when you guys left, the dog left?

A Correct.

Q O her than this security sweep that you descri bed,
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and then the events that you described to the Judge involving
M. Vasquez, was there any other searching at that apartnent

that you' re aware of ?

A No.
Q Was M's. Vasquez or the female taken into
cust ody?
A No.
Q Was she uncuffed before you left?
A Yes. She may not have been cuffed at all but she

certainly, if she was, she would have been uncuffed when we
left.
Q What about the other male, was he taken into

custody by you guys?

A No.
Q Do you know what happened to himafter you left?
A No, sir.
Q In fact, did you ever |earn who he was?
A No.
MR HALL: | think that's all | have, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

M. WIIson.

MR. WLLSON. Your Honor, I, too, amgoing to need
sone stickers.

Just four for now

THE COURT: Wiy don't we use letters for these.
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MR W LLSON: Letters are fine.
CRGOSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR W LLSON

Q Good norning, Trooper Wl sh
A Good norning, sir.
Q Just a couple of things so | understand. So you're

on this teamthat gets plugged in to do entries, is that

right?
A In this particul ar case, yes.
Q Is that a teamyou're still on today?
A No, sir.
Q Was there a period of tinme when you were generally

on an entry team and woul d get plugged in as needed?

A The entry teamwould be in addition to our
i nvestigative work. So we would, for the nost part, do the
entire case fromstart to finish

Q So is there a chance perhaps that this Friday you

could get put on to an entry teanf

A Yes.

Q So it cones up as needed?

A That's correct.

Q And in this particular case, it canme up, it wasn't

a case you had been worki ng on?
A That's correct.

Q And so at some point your teamwas notified that
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their hel p was needed?
A That's correct.
Q Who on your team woul d have been the one that would

be the contact person in that situation?

A Ser geant Burns.

Q Not you?

A That's correct.

Q And before you did the search, do you recall how

| ong ahead of tine you knew that you were going to be going
to West Haven on the norning of July 15th to do this entry?
A | believe once we left the brief, we went directly
to this residence. It was a fairly short anmount of tine.
Maybe 20 or 30 m nutes.
Q So had you nmet that norning sonmewhere about 5:00 in

t he norni ng?

A W nmet for a brief that norning, correct.

Q Roughl y 5:007?

A Correct.

Q So before 5:00 that norning, you didn't know

anyt hi ng about this case?

A That's correct.
You never | ooked at any of the evidence?
Correct.

You' d never been involved with a wiretap?

> O > O

Not this wretap.
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Q Agai n, just asking about this case. You had not
been involved with the wretap?

A Correct.

Q You didn't know Jose Vasquez from anybody until
about 5:00 that norning?

A That's correct.

Q And as you said earlier, you don't recall there
bei ng anyt hi ng specific about him being dangerous or having a
propensity to use guns or anything |ike that?

A Correct.

Q It's just your general training that sonetines
there are guns even when we don't expect it?

A Yes, sir, tool of the trade.

Q Right. You were saying earlier you don't recall
t he specifics about how you were organized to go into the

apartnent, is that right?

A That's correct.

Q You m ght have been the ram guy, you m ght have
not ?

A That's correct.

Q And of the three people that are situated, do each

one of those people have certain roles in that situation?
A Not ot her than the person who used the breach
tool s, no.

Q And earlier | think you indicated that there are
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two types of breach tool s?

A Correct.

Q There's the ranf

A Correct.

Q What's the ot her thing?

A The Hal i gan.

Q And what do you do with that?

A The Halligan is nore or less a pry bar for
out - swi ngi ng doors rather than in-sw ngi ng doors.

Q And do you recall whether, as you're about to go
into that apartnent, whether one of you had one of those?

A One of us -- any tine there's a potential to breach
a door, there would be sonebody with a ram and sonebody w th
a Hal li gan.

Q So you don't remenber specially, but your
expectation is that one of you would have had one and one
woul d have the other?

A Correct.

Q And the third guy, what's he supposed to do in that
si tuation?

A The third guy nakes entry, detain any persons
| ocated within the residence.

Q Is he the cormunicator in ternms of operating the
radi 0?

A Not necessarily.



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

74

Q So soneone could have a ramin one hand and a radio
in the other?

A That's correct.

Q You indicated earlier there was sone comruni cati on
with Agent Rubinstein | believe?
Correct.
And the Marshals O fice?
Correct.
Do you renenber who was doing that?

| believe it was Sergeant Burns.

o > O > O >

Is that typically his role because he's sort of the
mai n contact person?

A He's the supervisor, correct, so he'd be in charge
of any conmuni cations with sonebody el se or another agency.

Q In terns of who's the ramguy, is that sonething
wher e peopl e specialize or you just take turns, how does that
wor k?

A Yeah, it can depend. There are certain guys that
get it nore than others just because of their sheer size and
strength. Certain guys are |eft-handed and sonetines if
you' re standing on the opposite side of the door a |eft-hand
swing i s advantageous to a right-handed swing. And you have
to be trained in the utilization of those tools as well.

Q Have you been trai ned?

A. Yes.
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Q Do you tend to be the ramguy or do you tend to be
one of the other guys?

A | was -- for the first six or seven years | was
al nrost al ways the ram guy, but as we age that tends to get

taken away frommnme and given to a younger person.

Q Wt hout nmuch resistance, |'massum ng, as we age?
A Yeah, exactly.

Q And how ol d are you?

A 41.

Q How tall are you?

A Fi ve- ni ne.

Q You ook like a strong man. | don't want to assune

anything. How nuch do you wei gh?

A About 220 pounds.

Q So that day you're doing a job you ve done many,
many tines before, right?

A Correct.

Q And you don't renmenber too nuch specific about how
you were organi zed going in?

A Correct.

Q And you said that's a street | think where you
t hought maybe you' d done this at other tines on Washi ngton
Street?

A Yeah, | believe we have.

MR. WLLSON: Your Honor, may | approach the
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W t ness?

THE COURT: You may.

MR. WLLSON: Your Honor, just because this is our
first tinme doing this together, is that sonmething I should be
aski ng each tine?

THE COURT: No, certainly not for this proceeding.
But when you're done doi ng whatever you're doing up there,
just question fromthe podi um

Q I"ve put in front of the witness a copy of a
docunent that |'ve put here on the ELMO which is photograph
mar ked as Defendant's Exhibit A Prior to this hearing a
nunmber of photographs were provided to Chanbers and al so a
copy to the Governnent, and | believe this was anong t hem

Trooper, do you recognize this building at all in

t he picture?

A | assune it's the target building, but | couldn't
say for sure. | think it was dark when we were there.
Q That's a good question. You were there at about

quarter to six, right?

A Yes.

Q And this is July 15th?

A Yes, sir.

Q Do you renenber anything about the weather that
day?

A No, | don't.
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Q Do you renenber it being hot, humd, anything?

A | don't recall.

Q Do you renenber whether it was raining?

A | don't recall.

Q Do you know what day of the week it was?

A | don't.

Q Was this the sort of thing you do on the weekends

or is it pretty nmuch a Monday through Friday activity?
A Monday t hrough Fri day.
Q Do you recogni ze that street in general as
Washi ngt on Avenue in West Haven?
A I don't recognize it fromthe photo, no.
Q Looki ng at the photo, does that give you any better
menory as to where you woul d have entered the buil ding?
MR. HALL: D d you want to offer the photo? | would
object to the 100 Washi ngt on Avenue, West Haven part of it.
THE COURT: Just so |I'mclear, do you want to |ay
nmore of a foundation? You don't really have one to put it in
yet .
MR WLLSON: [I'mtrying to get there, Your Honor.
THE COURT: That's fine. Wiy don't you keep
goi ng.
MR. WLLSON: To see if anything hel ps his nenory.
I"mconfident | can put it in later with Ms. Vazquez.

Q You've had a mnute or two to | ook at the photo.
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Does it help jar your nenory at all?

A It doesn't, to be honest with you.

Q I"mjust going to take it back from you

A Sur e.

Q So you don't remenber whether it was dark or
l'i ght?

A | don't.

Q Now, you said you were carrying a SIG Sauer?

A Correct.

Q And is that your firearm of choice in these

situations?

A It's the permt issued weapon.

Q As the three of you are going in, do you all carry
t he exact sane type of firearn?

A | believe so. The only one that I'mnot a hundred
percent sure on that is Detective Chapman. He is a nmenber of
the State Police Tactical Team So he does have ot her
weapons that the rest of us are not issued so | can't say for
sure about him but the other state guys would have the sane
weapon.

Q Do you have any recollection of being up on the
| andi ng before you went into the apartnent what the other
nmenbers of the entry team had on them for a weapon?

A No.

Q And Detective Chaprman, you said he's part of the
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State Tactical Team Does he have access to sonething bigger
than a SI G Sauer?

A | don't know what he has access. They do utilize
ot her weapons so |'m not sure exactly.

Q Like a riffle?

A | don't knowif it's a larger caliber. | assune
it's not a larger caliber. So I don't know what you nean by
bi gger, frane or cali ber.

Q Somet hi ng ot her than a handgun?

A He does have access to those. And I'mnot sure if
he had that with himthat day or not.

Q So you're at the top of the landing. You don't
real ly know who's doi ng what, but one of you is going to have

the ram one of you is going to have the pryer, right?

A Correct.

Q Third person doesn't have any sort of entry device?
A Correct.

Q Cenerally fromyour training, one goes left, one

goes center, one goes right?

A Correct.

Q And you have sone recollection in this case you
went right?

A No.

Q You' re not sure?

A | don't know where | went. | just was clearing the
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veered to the left or went straight and there was roons off

to the right, I would have gone right. However, |'m not
saying that's the case. | don't recall the layout of this
apart nment .

Q You renenber that you ended up in a bedroonf

A Correct.

Q And earlier you did this thing where you knocked

and you tal ked about the entry. Do you have a specific
menory of that or is it like a |lot of your testinony today,
which is, this is howit works, this is how we do things?
A | do have a specific nenory of that. | nean, it
sonmet hing we do every tinme but | do have a specific nenory
it.
Q If I ask you yes or no, let's try to stick with
t hat .

So how nmany doors did you knock down in your

career?
A A coupl e thousand maybe.
Q Al right. And this is training that you' ve

actual Iy gone through, how to knock and enter an apart nent
a house, right?

A Correct.

Q So not only have you done it in real life, you' ve

done it in training a bunch, right?

80
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A That's correct.

Q Have you trained others on how to do this?

A No.

Q And you said your nmenory i s you probably waited

about 10 to 20 seconds, right?

A That's correct.

Q In terns of the entries that you' ve done, do you
nore often than not do them around six o' clock, some point
really early in the norning?

A Vell, in the |last few years they tend to be that
early in the norning, where the first five years | was in
this unit it tended to be in the evening or at night. But
the past few years they do tend to be early norning hits.

Q So we're going to agree that six o' 'clock in the

norning is early norning, right?

A Correct.

Q And depending on the tine of year, it's dark
right?

A Correct.

Q You don't even renenber whether July 15th was dar

or not, right?

A Correct.
Q And you said you heard sonme novenent, right?
A Correct.
Q Now, let nme junp away fromthat for a second.

81
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Agent Rubinstein, he was the one that was supposed

to do the report?

> o0 » O > O

Q

Correct.

Was there any other report as far as you know?

No.

You didn't do a report?
No.

Did you review his report?

No.

Did you give himsone information or

to ook at in preparing his report?

witing?

on?

A

Q

O > O

> O >

Q

I gave himinformation at the scene.

notes for him

Okay. Verbally. D d you give himanything in

No, sir.
Did you shoot himan email |ater
No.

Was there any texting conversati

No.

Had you worked with Agent Rubinstein before?

| have.

Have you worked with him since,

on?

on about it

ot her than

| at er

preparing for today or what you m ght have done with Agent

Hal |

excuse me -- Attorney Hall?
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A | don't believe so. Possibly, but | don't believe
so.

Q So you' ve never reviewed any sort of arrest report
for this case?

A No.

Q In fact, | think during your testinony you
mentioned that you didn't really review anything before

com ng here today, is that right?

A That's correct.

Q You haven't | ooked at any docunents?

A | read through the report when | got here
out si de.

Q You read through the arrest report?

A Correct.

Q Is that the first tinme you' ve ever seen that?

A No, | briefly looked at it when it was emailed to

nme by the attorney. But before that |'ve never |ooked at
it.
Q Did you have any conmmuni cati ons when it was enuil ed

to you other than | ook at this?

A Yes.
Q What were those comuni cati ons general |y about?
A Just informng nme that a suppression hearing wll

be com ng up, review the report, and make sure you're ready

to testify.
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Q Did you have any neeting with himother than com ng
here this norning?

A No.

Q So you said you heard novenent. You didn't hear
anybody loading up a firearm right?

A No, sir.

Q You didn't hear any grinding going on, |ike sonmeone

destroyi ng sonet hi ng?

A No, sir.

Q No one shreddi ng docunent s?

A No, sir.

Q You didn't hear a bunch of toilets flushing?

A | did not.

Q You didn't hear the sink running?

A | did not.

Q When you say novenent, you nean basically sone sort

of foot steps?

A That's correct.

Q And neanwhi | e Agent Rubi nstein, you believe, was
covering another exit?

A That's correct.

Q And was there anybody in addition to Agent
Rubi nstein covering any exits, if you renenber?

A | don't recall.

Q You said at sone point normally there's about five
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of you that would do this together?

A That's correct.

Q So if there's three of you on the stairs, there's
Agent Rubinstein, there's a decent chance that there's
sonmebody el se, right?

A | believe there was at | east another person at the
rear of the house, yeah.

Q Wul d that agent or trooper or whoever woul d have
been paired up to be side-by-side with Agent Rubinstein or
woul d he have covered sone other exit or w ndow?

A It could have been either. | couldn't say for sure
what hi s assignnent was.

Q At some point you said nore people were in the
apartnent. GCkay. Do you renenber at any point the total
nunber of officers or agents that were in the apartnent?

A | nean, | could estimate it, but | couldn't say for
sure.

Q The three of you that were on the stairs, who were

t hose agai n?

A Mysel f, Sergeant Burns, and Detective Chapman.
Q What was Detective Chapnman weari ng?
A Det ecti ve Chapman woul d have been wearing the sane

upper ballistic vest with the markings on it. And as far as
his pants, |I'mnot a hundred percent sure.

Q Was anyone wearing anything on their head?
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G her than a bal

know edge.

Q

When you went

cap or winter cap, not to ny

into the apartnment with your guns

86

drawn, did your gun have any sort of sighting device on it or

targeting device on it?

A
Q
A
Q
A

not the | aser

Yes.

Tel |

us about that.

It's a Para stock six hour sights.

What does that nean?

It's just

beans,

iron sights. So,

in other words, it's

flash lights or anything like that.

It's just a set of the standard iron sights.

Q

You know f ar

So would it be the type of thing where you would use it

| f

you were holding the gun up so you're actually | ooking as

opposed to down around your wai st,

A

Q

That's correct.

that sort of thing?

It doesn't project anything on to a wall or a

target or anything like that?

A

Q

That's correct.

Do you renenber about the others, what type of

firearns they were using in ternms of them having sights?

don't want to | ook over there,

Judge.

A

Do you renenber anythi ng about

wasn' t

| ooki ng over there,

to be honest with

nore about firearnms than | do. Ckay.

You

you want to focus on ne or the
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you.
THE COURT: Gentlenen, | get it. | tried a few
cases in ny day.
MR, WLLSON: | just saw his eyes drift off.
THE COURT: Just ask hima question.
Q Do you renenber anything about whether the others

had any sort of sight devices on their firearns?

A Sergeant Burns has the identical gun to nme -- as
me. As far as Chapman, | have no idea
Q I s Detective Chapnan soneone that you don't work

with as often?
A | do, but he's a nenber of the tact team so they
have nmul ti pl e weapons that they have access to.

THE COURT: M. WIIlson, can | just ask one question
about the sights?

MR. WLLSON: Certainly.

THE COURT: | want it very clear, the sight, when
you say it's an iron sight, we're talking it's on the barrel,
is that right?

THE W TNESS: Yes, Your Honor. It's not on the
barrel, it's on the slide. It's along that barrel portion.
So there's a single point on the front and then a U shaped
iron sight on the rear. So you would line up the two.

THE COURT: CGot it. Sorry. Go ahead, M.

W1 son.
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Q You | eave the big briefing, you have sort of a
smal | briefing, right?

A Correct.

Q At the big briefing you heard that a whole | ot of

activity is going on, not just M. Vasquez's case, right?

A That's correct.

Q And then you break into your small group?

A Correct.

Q And the small group is the people that are going to

go to Jose Vasquez's place?

A That's correct.

Q And you're focusing on M. Vasquez's situation |I'm
assum ng?

A That's correct.

Q And fromthat tinme until after everything has

happened at the apartnent, in that span of tinme, are you in

contact with the other groups that are going off to other

pl aces?
A Not ne personally, no.
Q Just so | understand the big group neeting, the big

briefing, is there a |lot of tal k about each defendant or is
it just nore of an organizational thing about why we're al
here today and then splitting up?

A | think it's both. | think it's an overview as

wel|l as specific targets involved in the case.
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Q When you're in that briefing or in the smal
briefing, is there any discussion about whether we think Jose
Vasquez is a night oW or maybe out at the casino or doing

something at that tinme of day, is there any discussion about

t hat ?
A | wouldn't say there's necessarily any discussion
about that. It would be Special Agent Rubinstein telling us

any pertinent information that we would need to know.
Q And the pertinent information that you recall is
that there's an expectation that he's going to be in an

apartnent at this address because his car was outside of it,

right?
A There was an expectation that he was going to be in
that apartnent. | believe there was nore than just the

vehi cl e being parked outside of it, but that would be a
guestion for him

Q And you go to the apartnment and pretty quickly
you're able to assess that the second fl oor apartnent

probably doesn't have anybody in it, right?

A That's correct.

Q You don't kick the door down?

A That's correct.

Q You don't ramit or pry it open or anything like

that, right?

A Correct.
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Q It's pretty obvious that you' re on the stairwell
and there's another door likely up to the third floor
apartnent, right?

A Correct.

Q And proceeding up that stairwell, you don't have to
go through other doors, it's just there's another door at the

top? |If you renenber.

A | don't recall specifically.

Q You sai d when you kicked in and you found the guy
that turned out to be Jose Vasquez, he was -- | don't want to
get M. Hall wong -- was he relatively cooperative?

A Yes.

Q He didn't resist you when it cane to putting on the

handcuf fs?

A No.

Q He didn't try to run?

A No.

Q He didn't try to grab anything?

A No.

Q And to the best you recall, the femal e that was

there, she was rel atively cooperative?

A | believe so, yes.

Q She didn't try to run?

A No.

Q She didn't try to grab anything?
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A No.

Q No one's trying to flip over the air mattress?
A Correct.

Q No one's trying to junp out the w ndow?

A Correct.

Q Do you recall M. Vasquez ever giving consent to

search the apartnent?

A No.

Q Do you recall the woman ever giving consent to
search the apartnent?

A No.

Q There's been sone talk, a little bit of testinony
fromyou about how there was a third person there. Renenber
that? D d you interact directly with that person?

A No.

Q I"mgoing to try one nore photo with you

Sir, I"'mjust going to put in front of you a
phot ograph that's actually been marked with Defendant's
Exhibit B. Put a copy of it here on the ELMO. There's sone
printing at the bottomthat says front entry which is not on
the marking so I"mjust going to cover that.

Does that hel p your recollection about the day's
events on July 15th or no?

A It doesn't, no.

THE COURT: Do you want to ask himif he recognizes
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the photo? It's up toyou. 1'd like to try to nove it
al ong.
MR WLLSON:. | don't want to try to pull teeth when
t here' s not hi ng.
THE COURT: Fi ne.

Q Earlier the Governnent asked you if you have a
general idea of what you're going to find when you go into
t hese types of places and you said yes. Are we talking nore
about the |ayout of generally what you would expect or is it
you expect to find X anmpbunt of drugs and Y anmount of guns and
that sort of thing?

A A generic layout, for instance, the approxinmate
si ze.

Q When you were at the big briefing, let's call it,
di d anyone explain to you that there are actually two
di fferent cases that were going on that day?

A They may have, but | don't recall specifically
t hat .

Q So you don't recall anyone tal ki ng about how
M. Jose Vasquez's case is actually just a two defendant case
and then there's this other case with a whol e bunch nore
def endant s?

A They may have, but | don't recall specifically,
no.

Q When you went in the apartnent, there's three
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people turns out. WAs there anything else in the apartnent
ot her than the furnishings and the peopl e?

A Not that | can recall

Q You tal ked at one point about there being generally
two entryways or exitways for an apartnment. Just to clarify,
when you say that, do you nean two entryways right out to the
street or into a conmon stairwell or sone other access point
when we're tal king about these buil dings?

A Typically there's two entries or exits, two
di fferent doorways that go out to not necessarily outside,
but a common hallway or sone way of exiting the building, for
instance, if there was a fire or sonething |ike that.

Q Do you have any recoll ection of assessing when you
got to 100 Washington Street these are the two ways to get in
and out or any nenory about that at all?

A Not ne particularly, no.

MR. WLLSON: Your Honor, if | could just have a
nmoment ?
THE COURT: Yes.
Q About how many of these entry teamactivities have

you done since July 15th, any guess?

A Maybe around 50 to 70.
Q Any nore in West Haven or they're all over the
pl ace?

A I"msure there was sone in West Haven, but spread
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out .
Q Trooper Wal sh, after M. Vasquez is in custody,
just so I'mclear, did you wal k himout of the apartnent?
A I"'mnot sure if | did nyself or sonmebody el se
di d.
Q Do you renenber driving himto whatever weigh
station he was going to go to on his way to court?
A I didn't drive himanywhere.
Q Did you renmenber who you left with or did you | eave
in your own car by yourself?
A I"mnot sure who |I left with. Once he was in
custody and we left that apartnent, our job was done.
Q Were you involved in seizing the car?
A No.
MR. WLLSON: Nothing further, Your Honor
THE COURT: Redirect, M. Hall.
MR, HALL: Just real quick, if | could, Your Honor,
a coupl e of questions.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR HALL:
Q So as far as the execution of this warrant at siXx
o' clock in the norning, did you have any part in deciding
what tinme it was going to be?
A No, sir.

MR WLLSON: I'msorry, | mssed the question, Your
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Honor .

THE COURT: The question was did you have any part
in deciding what tinme the warrant woul d be executed. And he
sai d no.

MR. WLLSON: Thank you, Your Honor

Q And then as far as M. WII|son asked you about
whet her you were briefed on how many federal cases this
round-up had been divided into by the | awers or whatever,
did you care?

A Honestly, no, sir.

MR. HALL: Thank you.

THE COURT: You can step down, sir.

M. Hall, you have another w tness, right?

MR HALL: Sure.

THE COURT: So why don't we take 15 mi nutes now and
we'll be back for your next witness. W'I|l be in recess.

(Recess.)

THE COURT: Be seated, please. M. Hall.

MR HALL: Yes, Your Honor. The Governnent woul d
call Charles Burns.

It's not like |I don't know these guys.

THE COURT: If you could stand and rai se your right
hand.

CHARLES BURNS,

called as a wtness by the Government, having been duly sworn
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by the Cerk, was exam ned and testified on his oath as
fol | ows:

THE CLERK: Pl ease be seated. State your nane, city
and state, spell your |ast nane.

THE WTNESS: M nane is Sergeant Charles Burns with
Connecticut State Police, M ddletown, Connecticut.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR HALL:
Q Good norni ng, Sergeant.
A Good nor ni ng.
Q Can you tell Judge Shea what you do for a |iving?
A Connecticut State Trooper.
Q And you're a Sergeant, right?
A. Yes, sir.
Q So what does that nean for you?
A ' ma supervisor.

Q And how | ong have you been with the Connecti cut
State Police?

A Approxi mately 16 years.

Q Before that, did you have any | aw enforcenent

experi ence?

A Yes, sir. One year in MIford.

Q MIford PD?

A Yes.

Q In your time with the State Police, did you
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have -- did you work on the road at all?
A Yes.
Q H ghway trooper kind of thing.

Did there cone

a time when you becane involved with

the Statew de Narcotics Task Force?

A

Q

A

Q
for the St

A

Q

A

Q
until the

A

Q

A

Q
Nar coti cs?

A

Q
tine to ti

A

Q

Yes.

When did you st

art with thenf

The end of 2012.

Prior to that t
ate Police?

No, | did not.

SO you were on
Yes.

So you were wt

present ?

ime, did you do any narcotics work

the road up until 20127

h Statewi de Narcotics from 2012

No. | amno |longer with Statew de Narcotics.

That's over wt

Yes.

h?

As of July of 2015, were you with Statew de

Yes.

You worked with other |aw enforcenment agencies from

me?
Yes.

I n Statew de.

What are you doi ng now?
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Q Is that quite a bit different fromwhen you were
with Statew de?

A Yes.

Q And were you a supervisor when you were with
St at ewt de?

A | was.

Q And al t hough you were a supervisor, did you
participate in investigations yourself?

A Yes.

Q And did you participate in executing search
warrants and arrest warrants?

A Yes, | did.

Q So you' ve done that before in narcotics cases,

before July of 2015?

A Yes.

Q On nunerous occasions would it be fair to say?
A Yes.

Q And at sone point before 2015, did you becone

98

associ ated with Trooper Wal sh and others in sort of an entry

t eanf?

A Yes, | worked out of the sanme office with Trooper
Wl sh.

Q Did you ever serve on entry teans with him before
20157
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A Yes, many.
Q And if you'd just tell ne, did the entry teamthat
you served on with himgenerally have the sane personnel over

a period of tine or not?

A Yes. It would generally be the sane group of
peopl e.
Q And so who was in that group of people, to the

extent you renenber any of thenf?

A There woul d be nysel f, another Sergeant, Detective
Kraus, Detective Chapman, Detective Wl sh.

Q And then fromtine to tine others would conme and
sone woul d go, that kind of thing?

A Yes. And then there would be -- our office was the
Task Force. So we had troopers and then we had people from
| ocal police departnents as well.

Q Coul d you -- drawi ng your attention to July of
2015, did you and your organi zation receive a request to
participate in a DEA operation?

A Yes, we did.

Q And then did you, in fact, yourself participate in
t hat operation?

A | did.

Q And again, in July of 2015, did you becone aware of
the particulars of the operation or sone particulars of the

operation?
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Yes.
What was your understanding of what it was?

During the briefing of the operation we were told

that there was a narcotics investigation that had been going

on for an extended period of tinme. DEA had several arrest

warrants and search warrants and we were going to be

assisting with the execution of an arrest warrant that

nor ni ng.

Q

And were you given any particulars as to who the

arrest warrant was going to be for?

A

Yes. That norning we were given the nanme and

address and photos of the person we were | ooking for.

Q

Is that the sanme norning you attenpted to execute

the warrant ?

o » O > O

Yes.

Were you given a picture of the guy?

Yes.

And you said an address?

Yes.

And were you given nore than one address?

Oiginally we were given a different address and it

was changed.

Q

So you received direction as to where to |ocate

this person?

A

Yes.
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Q Do you know who gave you that direction?

A Speci al Agent Rubi nstei n.

Q And what role, if any, did Special Agent Rubinstein
play with your entry teamin this operation?

A He was with our group representing the DEA

Q And on your entry team you nentioned the nunber of
names of the people who have been on entry teans with you
over time, but directing your attention to July 15th and that
DEA operation, do you recall who was on the entry teamyou

were with for that day?

A Not specifically.
Q Can you renenber anybody who was on it?
A | renmenber, like | said, Detective Chapnan,

Det ective Wal sh, Special Agent Rubinstein was there, but I
don't think he made the initial entry. | think he was on the
out si de.

Q And as far as the initial entry goes, this is a --
were you given a photograph of the house or the building at

t he address where you were to execute the warrant?

A | don't recall.

Q Did you find the building?

A Yes.

Q And did you neet in the small group, the entry team

wi th Special Agent Rubinstein, prior to attenpting the

entry?



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

102

A Yes.

Q And was that right there at the house or was that
sonmepl ace el se?

A W nmet prior and then we went to that house.

Q And when you net prior or another tinme, did you
guys cone up with sone kind of plan of who was going to do

what on the entry?

A Yes.

Q Do you recall any particulars of that?

A | don't remenber. Normally soneone woul d be
assigned the breaching tools. | don't renmenber who was

assi gned, though.
Q kay. So had you -- could you say roughly how many
entries you executed, either arest or search warrants, you

made with this team plus or m nus one or two peopl e,

roughl y?
A 150.
Q And have you ever made entries either for search or

arrest warrants into three-famly wood frane houses?

A Yes.

Q Coul d you say roughly how many tines?

A A quarter, a third.

Q So on that day, what -- do you renenber if there

was nore than one entrance to the building that was the

target?
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A Yes. | believe that there were three separate
entrances.
Q And do you recall which one that you were invol ved

wi th covering?

A We had several people go in different entrances
| ooki ng for an unsecured common door, and | believe it was
Det ecti ve Chapman who found a side door that was unsecured
into a conmon hal lway or stairwell.

Q And did you end up entering the building by way of
t hat doorway?

Yes, sir.

And who el se went in there with you?
The majority of our group.

Wul d that include Wal sh?

Yes.

Wul d that include Chapnman?

Yes.

o > O » O > O P

Ckay. So prior to entering the building, did you
have any conversation or other interaction wth any of the
resi dents of the building?
A No.
Q And so tell the Judge what happened -- w t hdrawn.
So you go to this entrance that you're going to
use, right? And did you open the door or did sonebody

el se?
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A To the apartnent or the common?

Q Into the buil ding.

A Into the building, | don't -- by the tine | got
there the door was open. There was no people there. [|I'm
assumng it was unlocked. | don't know.

Q Where did you guys go once you got into the
bui | di ng?

A We made our way to the third fl oor.

Q Were you able to detect whether anybody was there

present on the first floor?

A | don't renenber the first floor. | do renmenber on
the second floor fromthe stairwell the -- there was a hole
in the door where a dead bolt would be and you could tel
fromthe hallway that it was a vacant apartnent.

Q And so did you guys attenpt to enter into that
second fl oor?

A No.

Q Had you received information directing you really

to the third floor to find the subject?

A Yes.

Q And so did you proceed to the third floor?
A Yes, sir.

Q And when you got to the third floor, can you

describe for the Judge what it was |like there? Ws there a

| andi ng, was there not a | anding, that kind of thing, if you
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can recall?

A

Q

| don't recall if there was a | anding or not.

So when you got to the top -- when you got to the

unit entry door on the third floor, that happened, right?

You got to the unit entry door on the third floor? Yes? You

have to answer out | oud.

A

door.
Q
A.

Q

Yes.
What did you guys do?

The people who were in the front knocked on the

Wll, were you in the front?
No.

Did you guys | ook around the hallway to see if

there were any indications of residents by anybody?

A

Q
the third
residents

A

> O > O

Q

t he door.

Can you repeat the question.

Did you guys | ook around in the hallway up there on
floor to see if there were any indications of

by any particul ar peopl e?

No, | don't recall

You didn't do that?

| did not do that.

Do you recall if anybody el se did?

| do not recall

And so you started to say that soneone knocked on

Were you at the front of the line?
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A No, | was not.

Q That's called a stack, right?

A Correct.

Q So you were not at the front?

A No.

Q Did you have a ram yoursel f?

A No.

Q Did you have the other thing, pry bar thing?

A No. | was probably the fourth or fifth person
back.

Q Were you the guy who deci ded when to force the door

if that becane necessary?

A No.

Q And so you're at the back of the line. Can you
tell the Judge what happened as you' re standing at the door.

You started to say sonebody knocked.

A Right. W knocked. W announced.

Q Can you say to the Judge -- do you know who
knocked?

A | don't recall who was in the front.

Q It was not you?

A It was not ne.

Q Sonmebody knocked?

A Yes.

Q Did you hear it?
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A Yes.
Q Coul d you characterize the sound? In other words,
using -- do you know if the person who knocked, could you

tell by listening to it whether the knocking was done with
the flashlight or hand or open fist or whatever?

A It would be a I oud knock, |ike a banging.

Q What about this -- you said you announced. What

did you hear?

A Police with a warrant.

Q Is that typical?

A Yes.

Q Do you renenber that?

A Yes.

Q And was that announcenent made -- what ki nd of

voi ce was that announcenment nade?

A Loud.
Q And prior to the knock and announcenent, do you
recall seeing or hearing anything fromthe hallway -- from

t he apartnment as you were standing in the hallway?

A No, | do not.

Q And after the knock and announce, do you recal
seeing or hearing anything comng fromthe apartnent?

A No, | do not.

Q What happened after the knock and announce?

A Utimately the door was forced open.
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Q By you guys?

A Yes.

Q Do you know if they used a ramor pry bar?
A Il would -- | want to say the ram

Q Do you renenber that or do you just --

A The ramis usually the first attenpted tool.
Q And so -- and did the door yield?

A Yes.

Q Was anybody at the door?

A No.

Q Was there any discussion that you recall in the

stack after the announcenent was nmade about when to force the

door ?
A No.
Q Do you recall how long it was between the knock and

announce and when the door was forced?

A Less than a m nute.

Q And, again, you didn't hear anything?

A | did not.

Q And so once the door was forced , what did you
do?

A Once the door was open everybody entered into the
apart nment .

Q And let ne just stop you there. Wen you entered

the apartnment -- well, that norning, did you have a
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weapon?

A Yes.

Q And as you entered the apartnent, where was the
weapon?

A | don't recall if nmy weapon was drawn or not. It

woul d depend upon how far back I amin the stack whet her ny
gun woul d be out or not.
Q Can you explain that to the Judge, please. Wre

you ever the front guy?

A Yes.

Q If you're the front guy, where's your gun?

A Cenerally the people in the front would have their
gun out and the people in the back would be -- the people in

the front would be ultimately |i ke the cover people and then
the people in the back would be the arrest people. So you
woul d be -- the people in the back woul d be using their hands
to facilitate an arrest. So at that point you' re not using
your gun so | wouldn't have ny gun out.

Q And do you have a recollection of ever seeing the

people in front of you enter the apartnent?

A Yes.
Q And so could you see where they went?
A They peeled in different directions. | know that

when | went in | peeled to the right.

Q And why did you peel to the right?
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the left.

Q

end up?

A

110

The people in front of nme either went straight or

And so when you went to the right, where did you

There was a doorway that led to a bedroom

Was the doorway open or closed when you got to

Cl osed.
And did you enter that roonf
Yes.

When you entered that room did you have your gun

At that point I mght have. | don't recall.
Wiy do you say you mi ght have?

At that point nowl'min the front of a new |line,

for lack of a better term and at that point | would have

drawn mnmy gun.

> 0 >» O > O

Q

Do you know what ki nd of gun you had?

| have a .45 caliber Sig Sauer pistol.

So what did you do about that closed door?
W opened the door.

We?

We. | mean we as the group. Yeah, the door.

I want to just sort of get -- do you have a

recol l ection of opening the door or did soneone el se open the
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door.

find?
A

bedr oom
Q
A
Q
A

the femal e was stil

Q
target?
A

Q

and the femal e,

111

| don't recall. | remenber going through the

After you went through the door, what did you

There was a bedroomwith two people in the

And can you characterize them by gender?

A male and a fenale.

And where were they when you cane into the roonf
The mal e was half in bed and half out of bed. And
i n bed.

And ultimately was the nale identified as your
Utimately that was the nmain target, yes.
And once you were in the roomand there's the nmale

were you -- at that point were you al one or

was sonebody with you?

A
Q
A
per son.
Q
A

Q

No, there was several people wth us.

Do you renenber who any of them were?

| renmenber Detective Wal sh and at | east one ot her

Did you say anything to the people in the bed?

Wien | entered the room| would have said police.

And you woul d have said that. Do you recall saying
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anyt hing specific to then?

A No.

Q Do you recall you or soneone el se giving them
di rection?

A The direction would have just been as far as
handcuffing direction.

Q Right. You cone into this roomand there's this

man and worman. And when you say police, you didn't whisper

it, did you?
A No.
MR. WLLSON: Objection, Your Honor. |'mnot sure

that the evidence's clear that he said police. He said he
woul d have said police. | think it's an inportant
di stinction.

THE COURT: | heard the testinony, too, and | think
your characterization is accurate.

MR HALL: | heard it as well and | think he's
right.

Q D d soneone say sonething to these people in that

roomthat you heard?
Yes.
And do you recall what they said?

When | entered the room | vyelled police.

o > O P

And did you hear anyone, yourself or anyone el se,

gi ve these people any direction?



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

113

A The direction woul d have been to show us your
hands.
Q But do you recall hearing anybody saying police,

show nme your hands or sonmething |ike that? Just trying to

get for the Judge what you recall, that's all. |If you don't,
it's okay.

A I woul d have said police, show ne your hands.

Q And to your recollection, were both of the subjects

conpl i ant ?

A Yes.

Q Did it ultimtely happen that both of the subjects
got handcuffed?

A Yes.

Q And you' ve indicated that the nal e ended up being

the target that you were seeking in the first place, right?

A Yes.

Q So was he placed under arrest?

A Once he was identified, yes.

Q And do you renmenber how he was identified?

A We had a photo and Special Agent Rubinstein nmade a
phone call. He positively identified him

Q When you entered the apartnent -- | nean when you
entered that room the bedroom | guess, because there's a

bed in there, when you entered that room did Rubinstein cone

in wth you?
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A. Not at that tine.

Q When did he get there?

A He woul d have -- | don't renenber when he got
t here.
Q Do you have a recollection of it at some point he

was in the apartnment with you guys?

A Yes.

Q And that he was not there when you first went into
t he bedroonf

A Not when we initially went through the door.

Q kay. And did you have direct conversation with

the mal e subject?

A. Yes.
Q And what was the nature of that conversation?
A. Once the mal e was secured and the fenmal e was

secured and then there was a third person in the apartnent,
t hat person was secured, and the team had conpleted their

sweep of the apartnent to nake sure there was no ot her people

there, | gave all three of them-- | read themtheir M randa
ri ghts.
Q Did they sign anything to indicate they had been

read their rights?
A No.
Q And do you recall anyone hel ping M. Vasquez, the

subj ect, helping himprepare to be transported?
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A After, yes. So he -- yes, because at the tine he
was not dressed.

Q What was he dressed in?

A | believe underwear.

Q And so what happened t hen?

A | recall being in the conmon room |iving room
There was not much furniture. Call it the |living room

Q Wul d that be the first roomyou cane into?

A The first roomthat we canme in, had |like the mddle
room

Q Was that bedroomdirectly off that first roonf

A Yes. And | had read their rights in English. W

had a Spanish officer wwth us and | gave himthe M randa
card. He read the rights in Spanish. And then Detective
Wal sh, once we identified everybody, was trying to get

M. Vasquez sone cl ot hes.

Q And did Wal sh end up getting M. Vasquez sone
cl ot hes?
A Yes, he did.
Q And what was the clothes that he got hinf
A Oiginally it was a pair of pants.
Q And did you see Wal sh do anything with the pants

bef ore he brought themto M. Vasquez? D d you see it?
A Yes.

Q And what did you see?
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A | saw -- | was in the -- Walsh woul d have been in
t he bedroom | would have been in the living room And as
he was wal ki ng towards ne --

Q Coul d you see hinf

A | could see him And he had the pants and he was
shaki ng t hem upsi de down.

Q And what happened?

A Itenms fell out of the pants.

Q Did you see the itens?

A Yes.

Q Did you see themfall?

A Yes.

Q Wiere did they fall to?

A To the ground.

Q Coul d you see what they were?

A Yes. It was noney and narcotics.

Q Now, as far as the narcotics goes, was there

anything el se? Was there anything el se?

A In the pants?

Q That fell out of the pants?

A Not that | recall.

Q And so once it had been deternm ned that there were

narcotics there, what did you do?
A | renmenber having a conversation with the group and

then | ended up | eaving the apartnent.
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Q Before you left the apartnment, do you notice where

Wal sh got the pants fronf

A The bedr oom

Q Do you know where in the bedroonf

A No, | don't.

Q After the narcotics had been found, did you have

any occasion to go into the bedroonf

A Yes.

Q Did you see any other narcotics?

A Yes.

Q Wher e?

A I n the hanper.

Q There is a cl othes hanper?

A A cl ot hi ng hanper.

Q Where was the clothing hanmper |ocated, if you
recal | ?

A If you entered the bedroom to your inmediate |eft

on the ground.
Q And was that so -- so the hanper's to your
imredi ate left. |Is that sort of in the mddle of the room or

adj acent to anything in particular?

A It was against the wall, but to the left of the
door way.
Q So as you | ook at the hanper, what could you see?

A There was additional drugs.
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Q How coul d you say that?
A There was a plastic -- | don't even know how you
describe it -- the only thing | can think of it's the type of

thing that when I was a kid | used to put like pencils in.
Like a plastic foot-long itemwi th a zipper on the top

Q And when you saw this thing in the hanper, was the
zi pper opened or cl osed?

A It was open.

Q And coul d you see anything by just |ooking at the

hanper? Could you see what was inside of that thing?

A Yes, it was narcotics init.

Q What did the narcotics | ook |ike generally?

A | believe it was heroin.

Q Yeah. Have you seen heroin packaged for street
sal e?

A Yes.

Q Did it look |ike that?

A Yes.

Q So it was -- so it was in glassine bags?

A Yes.

Q In the hanper?

A Yes.

Q And what el se was in the hanper?

A | don't recall anything else in the hanper.
Cl ot hes.
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Q Coul d you tell the Judge, if you can, what the
condition of the clothes was, that is, were they just thrown
in the hanper or were they neatly fol ded?

A | don't recall that.

Q So with respect to the drugs on the floor, did you
touch those drugs? D d you take any action with respect to
t hose drugs?

A No.

Q And with respect to the drugs that you descri bed

fromthe hanper, did you take any action with respect to

t hose?
A No.
MR, HALL: |'msorry, Your Honor.
THE COURT: That's all right.
Q " m going to show you Exhibit 4 and ask you if you

could tell the Judge what that is?

A | believe that's the itens that were -- that fell
out of his pant pockets.

Q And then | want to show you what's been marked for

identification as Exhibit 6. Do you recognize that?

A That woul d have been the itemin the zipper bag.

Q Is that thing that you described |ike a pencil bag
type thing?

A Yes.

Q So that woul d have been in the hanper?
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A Yes.
MR HALL: | offer that.
MR. WLLSON: Your Honor, can | ask a question, just
a guestion about the record?
THE COURT: Yes.
BY MR W LLSON

Q Sir, did you testify that the bag when you saw it
in the hanper it was clear, like a transparent bag? | just
can't recall the testinony right now.

A No.

Q So when you're in the living area or this comon
area and you're | ooking into the bedroom is that when you
see -- allegedly see the bag?

MR HALL: This is kind of cross-exam nation.
THE COURT: He can ask a few questions on voir dire.
Stick with the bag.

Q I s that when you see the bag, when you're in the
common area?

A No. | was called into the room by Special Agent

Rubi nst ei n who pointed the bag out to ne.

Q Is this the condition that you saw the bag in?
A | believe so, yeah
Q It's hard to tell, honestly, but the bag doesn't

ook like it's in the hanper. You didn't see this photo be

taken or the bag when the photo was taken, am |1 right on
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t hat ?
THE COURT: | didn't even understand that question.
MR WLLSON: | don't know that | did either.
Q When | | ook at the picture here, you see there's

the bag, there's the noney, right?
A Yes.
Q And when you | ook around the frame of the bag, what
do you see?
A | can't tell from here
If you're asking ne if | saw the picture get taken,

| don't recall seeing the picture being taken.

Q So you don't renenber this picture being taken?
A No.

Q But you say that that's the bag that you saw?
A | believe so, yes.

THE COURT: One nore question, M. WIllson. W're
on voir dire here.

MR. WLLSON: That's fine.

| assune that the bag and the other pouch that we've
seen has not been brought today?

THE COURT: | have no idea.

MR. WLLSON:. That nmay be sonething we want to
explore in the future. Could | have a second with
M. Vasquez?

No objection, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: Exhibit 6 will be full.
(Wher eupon, Governnent's Exhibit Nunber 6 was narked
in full.)
MR. HALL: Thank you, Your Honor.
BY MR HALL:
Q "' mgoing to show you Exhibit 7 which | think is a

full exhibit. Do you recognize that?

A No, | do not.
Q Now, to your recollection, after M. Vasquez had
been -- well, after he had been M randi zed, did he nake any

statenments while you guys were in the apartnent?

A | don't recall any statenents.

Q Did he make any -- you don't recall any that he
woul d have made to you or anyone el se?

A | don't recall himmaking any statenents to ne.

Q And you nentioned as far as nanes of people who had

come into the apartnment with you, Wal sh and Chapman at | east,

right?
A Yes.
Q So at sone point did Chapman | eave the apart nent

bef ore you did?

A He and | both left the apartnent at the sane
tinme.

Q Wiy did you guys | eave?

A Il went -- | was under the inpression that we were
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apartnment.
Q What gave you that inpression?
A | don't recall having a conversation with
M. Vasquez, but to go back to ny vehicle to get paperwork,

woul d have only have done that if | was under the inpression

t hat we would be voluntarily searching the apartnent.

Q
A.
Q

A

And you're clear that that's why you left?
That's why | left.
Way di d Chapman | eave, do you know?

He left -- he al so has a narcotics cani ne.

woul d have gone to get the canine.

Q

o » 0 >» O » O » O > O P

To participate in a consent search?

Yes.

So then did you return to the apartnent?
Yes.

And did Chapman return to the apartnent?
Yes.

And di d he have the dog?

Yes.

Were you famliar with his dog?

Yes.

It's a narcotics dog?

Yes.

Had you seen that dog alert before?

So he
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A Yes.
Q To your recollection, did M. Vasquez or anybody at
the apartnment ultimately consent to a search of the

apartnent ?

A No. Wen | cane back in --

Q No, right. And then what happened when you cane
back in.?

A No, he did not. Wen | cane back in the nood had

changed in the apartnment and I was told by ny teamthat we
were not going to have a consent signed.

Q So you left the apartnent with the inpression that
t here woul d be a consent search?

A Yes.

Q When you returned you had the inpression that there
woul d not ?

A Yes. Wen | cane back that's what | was told that,
no, he's not giving consent.

Q So aside fromwhat we tal ked about with the pants
and what we tal ked about with the |aundry basket and any
security sweep that you and your nen did upon entering the

apartnent, was a search conducted of the apartnent?

A No, it was not.

Q Was the dog run through the apartnment to search
it?

A No.
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Q Did you see the dog alert in the apartnent?
A | did not.
Q And before you guys -- how | ong were you guys
t here?
A Hal f an hour naybe.
Q Before you guys left, was the fenale rel eased from

t he handcuffs?

A Yes.

Q Was she taken into custody after that at all?

A No.

Q And coul d you descri be her demeanor upon your
entry?

A | don't recall her demeanor one way or the other.

Q So she was rel eased fromthe handcuffs. The third

party, the nale -- there was a third party, right?

A Yes.

Q He was ultimately identified?

A Yes.

Q Did you have a warrant for hinf

A No.

Q Was he unhandcuf fed?

A Yes, he was.

Q Did you guys transport hi m anywhere?
A No.

Q D d you?
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A No.
Q So when you left, is it fair to say that the female

and that third party guy stayed?

A Yes.

Q And did you seize any evidence?

A No. Special Agent Rubinstein seized evidence.
Q And so there was one prisoner, right?

A We had one prisoner, yes.

Q Who hel ped hi mout of the house? Wo hel ped him
out of the anmount, if you recall?

A | do not recall.

Q And did you help transport himafter he was renoved

fromthe house?

A | don't remenber how he was transported.

Q You m ght have and you m ght not have?

A | cane in a cargo van that could fit 15 people. |
don't recall if he cane with us in the van -- we also had a
couple cars -- or if he left in a vehicle.

Q Did you say there were 15 people in the van?

A No, that's the size of the van.

Q So after you guys cleared -- left the prem ses,

what did you do?
A Once we left we ended up going to -- back to the
briefing | ocation.

Q Was there any further investigative activity by you
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and the other state troopers?
A The only other thing | recall is | believe the

vehicl e was sei zed.

Q From wher e?

A From t he house.

Q Do you recall why that was seized?

A That was part of the DEA instructions.

MR. HALL: Nothing further, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Ckay. Cross-exam nation.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR W LLSON

Q Good afternoon

A Good afternoon, sir.

Q Junping to the mddle. So you're in the conmon
area. M. Vasquez is in -- excuse nme -- Trooper Walsh is in

t he bedroom and he grabs a pair of jeans, shakes them and
out falls the noney and the pouch?

A Yes.

Q So earlier you said noney and narcotics. Wen you
were standing in the cormon area or the living room whatever
it is, you didn't actually see drugs fall. You saw the pouch
fall and then a subsequent search led to finding the drugs in
t he pouch?

A No.

Q You saw j ust drugs everywhere?
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A Because he was walking it alnost nade it like a

line, there was gl assine bags.

Q And he was the one with the jeans, right?
A Yes.
Q So if he testified about what he saw, he was the

one that had a better view of what was goi ng on?

MR HALL: | object to the formof that questio.
Q Did he have a better view of the jeans?
MR. HALL: | object to the formof that question
al so.
THE COURT: If he knows, he can answer. Wiit. |'ve
overruled the objection. [|If the wtness knows the answer to

t he question did he have a better view, he can answer that
guesti on.
Q Conpared to where you were standing, did Trooper

Wal sh have a better view of the jeans and whatever fell out

of 1t?
A He was hol ding the jeans, so, yes.
Q Is it fair to say that a certain percentage of your

recoll ection of July 15th is based on your training and your
practi ces and what you expect woul d have happened as opposed
to specific nenories, is that fair to say?

A I"'mtrying to testify based on ny nenory.

Q Sir, you' ve used woul d have and woul d have done

this in a decent anmount of your testinony. Just so the
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record is clear, when you're doing that, would you agree that
that's an indication that you're recalling what you woul d
normally do in those situations?

A Yes.

Q For exanple, if you were the person in the back
which is what you recall being as you're about to enter the

apartment, you woul d not have been the person hol ding the

ram right?

A Correct.

Q And you woul dn't be the person holding the
crowbar ?

A Correct.

Q And your recollection is that there were about four

to five people on that stairway waiting to go into the
apartnent ?

A No, there was nore than that. | think | said | was
the fourth or fifth person back, but there were peopl e behind
me.

Q I m sunderstood then. Wsat's your nenory as to how
many there were?

A | don't remenber, but there were people in front of
nme and there were people behind ne.

Q Maybe ten?

A Ei ght to ten.

Q Eight to ten. And neanwhile, there's at |east a
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coupl e of people stationed at other |ocations in case soneone
tries to go out another exit, is that right?

A Yes.

Q And Agent Rubi nstein was probably one of the people
at one of the other locations, is that your nenory?

A Yes.

Q Prior to the briefing that led to the entry, had
you had any other contact wi th anybody about this case
i nvolving M. Vasquez?

A Yes.

Q So before the norning of July 15th, you had had

contact wi th sonebody about the case agai nst Jose Vasquez?

A Yes.

Q Who was that?

A Speci al Agent Cogan.

Q Who i s Special Agent Cogan? What's his

relati onship to you?

A He's just an agent.

Q Were you the contact person for the entry team
getting involved or how did you have contact? Let ne stop
nysel f.

Were you the contact person for the entry team
getting invol ved that norning?

A Yes.

Q So there's not another trooper or detective or what
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have you that was the contact person?

A No. | received -- it was either phone call.

Q Is that the nature of the contact you had with
Agent Cogan?

A Yes.

Q Do you renenber when in relationship to July 15th
you got that call from Agent Cogan?

A It was probably a nonth prior to that saying that
t hey were planning on needing our assistance at sonme point in

the future. Didn't have a specific date at that tine.

Q Did he have an address?
A No. At that point | didn't even have any targets
names or anything. It was just we're going to be doing a

| arge roundup and we're going to be | ooking for assistance.
Q Bet ween that contact a nonth prior on July 15th,
did you have additional contact with Agent Cogan or anot her

agent about bei ng needed the norning of July 15th?

A Just as far as logistics of where to go and date
and tine.

Q There was a canine there, right?

A Yes.

Q Have you ever been a canine officer anywhere?

A No.

Q Wth canine use, is there any reporting

requi renents for state police about what did the canine do on
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A Nar coti cs cani ne?

Q Yes.

A No, only if they're used in a search.

Q And based on the activity fromJuly 15th, would you

expect there would have been a canine report?

A No.

Q Were you involved in witing the report?

A No.

Q Did you give information that was used in witing

the report?

A Can you repeat that one nore tine?

Q Did you give information that was used in witing

the report?

A | don't think so.

Q kay. Do you renenber taking any notes in
connection with what happened at the arrest?

A No.
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Q Do you renenber sending any text nessages or other

conmuni cations to anybody about what happened at the

arrest?

A No.

Q Did you ever see a report fromthe arrest?

A Yes.

Q When did you see it?

A | received that from M. Hall.

Q And that was in connection with getting ready for
t oday?

A Yes, sir.

Q Back cl oser to when the events happened and the

report probably was created, did you have a chance to review
it?

A No, | never sawit.

Q The narcotics that you say you were found in the

| aundry basket, do you recall that?

A Yes.
Q Can you describe the |aundry basket for us?
A A plastic two foot by two foot square open top with

hol es on the side for ventilation style | aundry basket.

Q | don't know if you' re sonmeone who does their own
aundry, but is it the type of basket where you would bring
it to the washing nmachine and carry it or would you pul

stuff out of it and then nove it to a washi ng nmachi ne?
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A It's portable.

Q Were you the person that first discovered or do you
claimto be the person that first discovered the narcotics in
t he | aundry basket ?

A No, no.

Q Who is that?

A Speci al Agent Rubi nstei n.

Q Did he call you over or sonehow draw your attention
toit?

A Yes.

Q So when he --correct nme if I'mwong, but did he

poi nt out the narcotics and you | ooked and said, oh, yeah,

those are narcotics, is that howit all went?

A Yes, sonething along those |ines.

Q You didn't independently find themon your own?
A No, no.

Q You indicated a few of the people you recalled

being in line with you to go into the apartnent that day.
Can you just give us those nanes agai n?

A It was Walsh -- I'mtrying to remenber the people
that were there. So Wal sh, Chapman, Kraus, Gonzay (ph).

Q Anybody el se?

A Not off nenory.

Q Sir, I want to put on the ELMO here a photo that's

previously been marked as Defendant's Exhibit A Do you
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recogni ze that buil di ng?

A Yes.

Q How do you recognize it?

A That's the house that we went into.

Q The house where eventually you found M. Vasquez
i nsi de?

A Yes.

Q And do you think that photo seens to accurately

capture your nmenory of the building on the day of July

15t h?
A Yes.
MR. WLLSON: Your Honor, I'd offer this into
evi dence.
MR. HALL: No objection, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Defendant's A wll be full.
(Wher eupon, Defendant's Exhibit A was marked in
full.)
Q Sticking wwth the photo for a second. You see

there's sone side stairs where |'mpointing to?
A Yes.
Q Is that -- do you recall whether that's the
entryway that you went in to get to the common stairway?
A Yes.
MR, WLLSON: Your Honor, should I pass it to your

courtroom deputy for the record?
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THE COURT: Yes.

Q Sir, just again, if you recall, putting in front of
you a photo that's been marked as Defendant's Exhibit B. Do
you recogni ze that at all?

A Yes. The doorway on the right would be the stairs
comng into the apartnent, and then strai ght ahead the door
that's open with the wi ndow woul d be the bedroom

Q When you say the door with the entry into the
apartnent, is that the door that everyone woul d have cone
t hrough when they broke in?

A Yes.

Q And | can't recall, help ne. Wen you cane in did
you peel right, peel left, peel center? Wich way did you
go?

A | went to the right.

Q So you turned into that roomthat you just
identified as the bedroonf

A Yes.

THE COURT: That doorway you said to the right,
there are two doors on the right. | assune you nean the one
that is shown as being open in the picture.

THE W TNESS:. Yes, the open doorway.

THE COURT: Thank you. Go ahead.

Q Sir, do you recall opening that door in the mddle

at any point?
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A No, | don't recall that door at all.

MR HALL: I'msorry to interrupt. That could be a
full exhibit?

THE COURT: Do you want to offer it.

MR, WLLSON: Yes, Your Honor

THE COURT: No objection?

MR HALL: No.

THE COURT: Defendant's B w Il be full.

(Wher eupon, Defendant's B was marked in full.)

Q You' ve tal ked about how you were in sort of a
living area but you could see into the bedroom Do you
remenber that testinony?

A Yes.

Q So using this picture, is it as if you' re the
phot ographer and that's about where your position was and you
coul d see into the bedroomfromthere?

A Yes.

MR, WLLSON: Again, I'lIl just pass that up, Your
Honor .
THE COURT: Sure.

Q You had a conversation with a group in the living
area and then you left the apartnent earlier in your
testinmony. |Is that when you left the apartnent to go out to
your car but then canme back?

A. Yes.
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Q Do you recall anything about that conversation with
t he group?

A No.

Q You don't renenber soneone saying to you hey, go

get the consent forms, he's going to consent or anything |ike

t hat ?

A No.

Q And at that point did things seemfairly stable and
secure?

A Yes.

Q You woul dn't have left the apartnent if things were

not secured, correct?
A Correct.
Q And fromyour nmenory of M. Vasquez, no one there

really put up any resistance or was difficult in any way?

A No.

Q Do you renenber who you had the conversation
with?

A No.

Q Do you speak Spanish, sir?

A No.

Q So when you went in the apartnent there was the
three people, a small anount of furnishings let's call it.

Anyt hi ng el se nenorabl e about the apartnent?

A. No. Just the lack of furniture.
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MR. WLLSON: Your Honor, if | could just have a
nonent ?
THE COURT: Yes.

Q You said initially you were given a different
address to go do the search, do you renenber saying that?

A Yes.

Q Do you renenber anything about why it switched or
what the other address was?

A | don't renenber the other address. It was -- it
was changed before we arrived that norning for the
briefing.

THE COURT: |'msorry, your voice dropped off. You
said it was changed before?

A Bef ore we got there we were given an address and

then that norning it was a different address.

Q But you don't renenber what the first address was?
A No, | do not.
Q Just in general, when you're doing one of these

entries, soneone uses the ram right?

A Yes.

Q And then do they drop the ramand take out their
gun or how does that work?

A Generally, the person with the ramis not the first
person through the door.

Q So the person rans the door, tries to get out of
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the way, let the others through?

A Yes.

Q Do you renenber anything specifically fromthis
nor ni ng, July 15th, about how that worked?

A No.

Q And the person who rans the door and then gets out

of the way, what do they do with the ramnormally?

A It generally stays right there.

Q They stack it neatly or they drop it and go in?
A General |y probably dropped.

Q Do you recall anything specific that day?

A No.

Q G ven -- when you're on a stairwell, in your

experience as being the ramguy fromtine to tine, wuld you
then bring the ramw th you into the apartnent, drop it
somewhere in the apartnment or would you drop it on the

stairs, it tunbles, or how would you handl e that?

A It woul d probably end up right inside the
apartment.
Q Are you trained to, if you're follow ng the ram

guy, to step over, make sure you don't trip, get hurt or how
is that handl ed?

A "' m not understanding the question.

Q Well, you're the ram person. Are you then the | ast

person to go in and everyone goes in front of you?
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A | can talk in generalities. It's a fluid
situation. So every situation is going to be a little bit

different. But generally the ramguy is not the first person

t hr ough.
Q Are they usually the | ast person through?
A Depends.
Q When you drop the ram neke a | ot of noise?
A It could. | nean sonetines if you drop it it

woul d, but we have different people that do the rans. So

some people would place it down, sone people might drop it

down. It depends.

Q And you don't renmenber who was the ram guy that
day?

A | have no idea.

How nuch does the ram wei gh?
A 30 pounds.
MR WLLSON: I'mfinished at this tinme.
MR HALL: Just one.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR HALL:
Q Sergeant, were there any Connecticut State Police
reports made of this operation at all?
A No.
MR, HALL: Thank you. Nothing further.

THE COURT: You can step down, sir. Thank you.
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W will recess for lunch early and cone back in 45
m nutes. Before he do that, how many w tnesses do you expect
to call?

MR HALL: One.

THE COURT: And that's going to be Special Agent
Rubi nst ei n?

MR. HALL: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Have you had a chance to inquire with
Ms. Vasquez how she's doing, that kind of thing?

MR WLLSON: Not since we first addressed it this
nor ni ng, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Wy don't you report back after |unch on
t hat .

And then lastly, we had discussed on the phone the
possibility of nmoving the trial. And | think we had had sone
di scussion that Cctober 12th might be an acceptabl e date.
think M. WIlson wanted a little tine to talk to his client
about that. Does that date remain a good date for the
parties?

MR HALL: M dance card is open on Cctober 12th.

MR WLLSON: Likew se, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And so, M. WIIson, you' ve had a chance
to talk to your client about that?

MR WLLSON: | have, Your Honor. W' ve discussed

it. He is agreeable. He's aware he has a right to a speedy
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trial, but we'll waive that in this instance. He's out on
bond with a nunber of conditions and all that is going well
as far as we know. So in light of that, we're fine to noving
it to Cctober.

THE COURT: In light of that, I'"mgoing to
reschedule jury selection for October 12th, with evidence to
start imediately thereafter. | find that the tinme between
t oday and Cctober 12th, 2016, is excluded under the Speedy
Trial Act because the ends of justice served by continuing
the trial to that date outweigh the best interest of the
public and the defendant in the speedy trial. |In particular,
given the fact that the Defendant is not being detained prior
to trial and, also, that the parties will need additiona
time potentially to alter their strategies in [ight of ny
ruling on the notion we're addressing today, the suppression
notion. | find that while this case nay not be unusual or
conplex, failing to exclude the tinme through Cctober 12th
woul d deny the Defendant and the Governnent the reasonabl e
time necessary for effective preparation taking into account

t he exercise of due diligence.

Al right. And then we'll -- before we start this
afternoon, we'll talk about Ms. Vasquez's status and, if
necessary, we'll need to pick another date.

Now, so you're aware, that date is going to have to

be before the end of March. So you know, we're going to
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finish this hearing if it's not finished today.

So we'll be in recess.

MR. WLLSON: Your Honor, one |ast question. Are we
goi ng to have our argunment today on Waver and Pelletier and
t hose cases, or are we going to reserve that after finishing
of the hearing?

THE COURT: If we don't finish the hearing today,
we'll do that at the end.

We'll be in recess.

(Recess.)

(Recess.)

THE COURT: Please be seated. By ny clock, I'ma
little late. So | apol ogi ze.

M. WIIlson, do you have a report with regard to
Ms. Vasquez?

MR WLLSON: Yes. It would not be suitable for her
to testify. She has not been able to get the nedication that
she needs.

THE COURT: Let's pick a second day now. Do you
have an estimte of how | ong you expect to be with her, M.
W1l son?

MR WLLSON: Your Honor, | think it would be
conparable to probably the first witness we had today. It
will be alittle |onger.

THE COURT: So hour, hour and a half total ?
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MR. WLLSON: | don't want to pigeon hole the
Governnent into a tinme slot. | think I'll take about an
hour .

THE COURT: Let's call it two to be safe. And we'l]l
| eave sonme tine for argunent. | don't think we don't need

much for that, half hour, 25 mnutes total for argunent if we
even need that nuch.

How does the -- bear with ne one second. How does
the norning of the 22nd which is Tuesday?

MR. WLLSON: Your Honor, I'Il tell you it's clear
on ny calendar. | don't want to mi srepresent anything there.
In light of her condition, just giving everything a chance to
resolve wwth that. | can tell you that | have a spare anount
availability of the 29th, 30th and 31st.

THE COURT: So you're saying you don't think she'l
be able to proceed on the 22nd?

MR WLLSON:. | don't know. Gven that's just five
days away, | wouldn't want to ask again to nove things.

THE COURT: And you're not available on the 28th?

MR. WLLSON:. The 28th | could do late in the day.
| have a conference with Judge Underhill at 11:00 that's
going to go to noon.

THE COURT: How about the 29th? You said the 29th
| ooked good for you, M. WIIson?

MR. HALL: 29th would be good for ne.
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THE COURT: Let's say the 29th and we'|l start at
ni ne.

Very well. Anything else to take up before our next
W t ness?

MR HALL: | don't think so, Your Honor.

MR, WLLSON: Your Honor, anticipating that Agent
Rubi nstein is going to be the next witness, |I'mgoing to, for
t he purposes of the record, restate ny earlier objection.
Agent Rubinstein has been in the courtroomfor the testinony
of the first two witnesses. So just to nmamintain ny objection
at this tinme noting that for the record.

THE COURT: Are you ready?

MR HALL: Yes, Your Honor. The United States woul d
cal I John Rubi nstein.

THE COURT: Pl ease raise your right hand, sir.

J OHN RUBI NSTEI N

called as a witness by the Governnment, having been duly sworn
by the Cerk, was exam ned and testified on his oath as
fol | ows:

THE CLERK: Pl ease be seat ed.

State your name, city and state, spell your [ ast
nane.

THE W TNESS: John Rubi nstein, New Haven
Connecticut. M last naneis RUBI NSTEI N

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
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BY MR HALL:

Q Good afternoon, sir. Can you tell the Court how
you' re enpl oyed?

A | am a Supervisory Special Agent with the Drug

Enf or cenent Adm ni strati on.

Q And how | ong have you been with the DEA?
A This April it will be 26 years.
Q How | ong have you been with the DEA in

Connecti cut ?

A About 16 years, approxi mately.

Q And now you're a Supervisory Special Agent?

A Yes.

Q What does that nean?

A | am a Manager/ Supervi sor over an enforcenment group

in New Haven, Connecti cut.
Q Do you still do cases yourself? Do you

i nvesti gate?

A | still investigate. |I'mnot a |ead on cases, but
| still do investigations.

Q And you're not a | ead because supervisors can't be
t he | ead?

A They shoul dn't be the |ead.

Q Too nmuch to do?

A There's a | ot of other duties besides

i nvestigating.
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Q Turning your attention to July of 2015, did you
becone aware of an investigation being conducted by your
agency into heroin distribution, suspected heroin
di stribution by Jose Vasquez and W son Vasquez?

A Yes.

Q And were you aware of that investigation as it was

goi ng on before July?

A | was aware, yes.
Q Did you participate in it?
A Not really.
Q Are you based in New Haven?
A | amin New Haven.
Q And that investigation was based in New Haven
al so?
A Yes.
Q And so you woul d, on a day-to-day basis, would have

occasion to be around the other agents and Task Force
of ficers who were doing that investigation, right?

A That's correct.

Q When you said | didn't -- sort of didn't have
anything to do with it, is that kind of what you neant?

A Yes, I'min a difference enforcenent group. There
are difference forcenent groups in New Haven, and that
operation, this investigation, was conducted by anot her

enf orcement group.
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Q Right. But you guys are around each other all the
time?

A Yes.

Q Did you know there was a w retap?

A Yes, | did.

Q. Did you sit on the wire at all?

A | did not. | mght have been mnimzed one or two
times. | mght have been, but I'mnot sure a hundred percent
on that.

Q And that would be a set of instructions delivered

by the prosecutor, probably nme, about how to handl e certain

aspects of the wiretap, right?

A That's correct.

Q But you didn't have any hands on invol venent,
right?

A No.

Q Did you nake any investigative decisions in that

i nvestigation?

A No.

Q Were you aware generally of the scope of that
i nvestigation?

A Yes.

Q Did you participate in a briefing prior to what you
guys would call the take-down in that investigation?

A. Yes, | did.
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Q And were you designated as one of the team | eaders

in that investigation?

A Yes.
Q And what was the assignnment of your teanf?
A To arrest Jose Vasquez.
Q Were you to do anything besides arrest
M. Vasque?
A That day? O | nmean -- | had been given

i nformati on about possibility of [ocations for himand I did
some pre-operational surveillance nyself, and did sone
| ooking into the target and did ny background investigation.
| | ooked over the information that was given to ne by the
case agents about the target and a photo and | ocati ons.
did nmy own, you know, one or two days of preparation for
t hat .

Q Again, all in preparation for the arrest that you

were going to be naking?

A On the 15th.

Q And your team -- who was on your teanf

A | was the only DEA agent and it was a statew de
narcotics teamthat was -- | was acconpanyi ng them they were
acconmpanying me. | don't know how you look at it.

Q That statew de narcotics team had you worked with

t hat team before?

A. Yes.
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Q Had you wor ked, other than working with those guys

as a team had you worked with some of those individuals

bef or e?
A Yes, numerous timnes.
Q So the DEA in New Haven, is it fair to say, does

projects with the Statew de Narcotics Task Force fromtine to

time?

A Yes.

Q And that's the connection in which you knew t hese
peopl e?

A Yes.

Q So directing your attention to the norning of the

15th. What did you do first thing in the norning?
A Early that norning, very early, like 3:00 in the
norning, | went by a |location that was given to nme and

observed M. Vasquez's vehicle parked next to the residence

that we had -- that had been given to ne.
Q Was that the 100 Washi ngton Street address?
A Yes.
Q So was the car there?
A Yes.
Q And in that infornation about whose car it was or

what ever, that was given to you al so, right?
A Yes.

Q And so what else did you do that norning?
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A | went to a briefing location where | was part of a
| arge general briefing given by the case agents to everyone,
alittle tower view of the case.

Q Can you say roughly how many agents and officers

were involved in that operation?

A I'd say over a hundred.

Q Then you went where?

A Then inside this facility we had divided up areas
for each team and | was a nenber of a team nunber, |'m not

sure what the nunber was, but ny team was assigned the arrest
of M. Vasquez. So the people assignhed to that canme over to
that area and we discussed what | had seen earlier in the
day, his vehicle was there. W discussed the |ocation, what
it looked like, the 100 Washi ngton Avenue. And we di scussed
actually getting out of that l|ocation to a secondary | ocation
to brief briefly and exit this thing approxi mately 6:00 a. m
Q So by the tine 6:00 a.m rolled around, did you
have a final |ocation that you guys were being directed to go

to for the arrest of M. Vasquez?

A Yes.

Q Do you renenber what that |ocation was?

A It was 100-102 Washi ngton Avenue.

Q And what is 100-102 Washi ngton Avenue?

A It's a house, a three-story house

Q So you guys went there. Do you know how many
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peopl e were on your tean?

A About twel ve peopl e.

Q And as far as deciding who goes to what door and
that kind of stuff, do you do that or who did that? Wo's
responsi bl e?

A Me and Sergeant Burns tal ked about it was all their
personnel and | was the only DEA person there, and there was
a Departnent of Corrections person there also, but it was
deci ded that the statew de people would handl e the
enf orcenent aspect of this operation and | woul d handl e any
kind of administrative portions of the investigation, such as
report witing and evidence handli ng.

Q So at sone point did the various nmenbers of the
team di sperse to get ready to do what each one was assi gnhed
to do?

A Yes.

Q And where did you go when that happened?

A | was downstairs on the front and the side of the
resi dence on Washi ngton Street and on the side of
Washi ngton -- I'mnot sure what the adjacent road was. | was
on the perinmeter with another person as the statew de people
made entry into the side door.

Q Were you in radio contact of any kind w th other
teanms or conmand post or anything |ike that?

A I was in radio contact wth the command post.



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

154

Q Were ot her people on the teans, that is, the
St at ewi de Narcotics Task Force people, were they in direct
contact with the command post or was that going to cone

t hrough you?

A No, that was through ne.

Q How many doors did you say that they covered? |'m
sorry.

A That we covered?

Q That you covered or entered through?

A They went through -- when | saw themthey were in

the side door, in that door. Wether they're on the first,

second, third floor | couldn't tell because they went in that

door .
Q Was that the entry teanf
A That was the entry team
Q So those were the guys that were going to go into

the apartnment and arrest M. Vasquez?

A Yes.

Q So they went inside. And did you receive any
i nformati on about their progress as they noved around i nside
t he buil di ng?

A I'd gone inside and cone back outside, and darted
back inside and cane back outside one or two tines during
that time. And we also had an execution tine of 6:00, a.m

So we tried to keep it close to that. But the teamwas in
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there a little bit before that and they determ ned that the
third floor was one of the residents where soneone was in and
they executed. | didn't give thema command to execute or
anything like that.

Q Do you know who rmade the decision for themto go in
the split second that they actually went in?

A | do not.

Q Did you receive sone kind of indication that they

had actually nmade entry and secured the target?

A. Yes.
Q How di d that happen? Was it -- how was that?
A. | either wal ked in or one of them wal ked down and

told me everything was secure inside.

Q And so did you proceed to the apartnent?
A Yes.
Q By the tinme that you got to the apartnent, were

t hey al ready inside?

A Yes.
Q And by the tine that you got to the apartnent, what
was the status of the individuals -- the non-Ilaw enforcenent

peopl e inside the apartnent?

A They were secure and in -- at |east the two nal es
were in handcuffs. | can't be for sure of the female. She
m ght have been. | can't recall. She probably was.

Q You said they were secure. Wat do you nmean by
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t hat ?

A They were handcuffed, out of bed, in a conmon area
outsi de of the bedroom

Q And had you had any information prior to the entry
that there mght be a female with M. Vasquez?

A Yes.

Q Did you have any information that there m ght be
another male with the two of then®

A | didn't have specific information, no, but | knew

there were multiple individuals involved in this case.

Q So when you went up there, how many subjects were
t her e?

A There were three.

Q And were you surprised that there were three

i nstead of two?
A No.
Q And did you beconme aware that the subjects had been

M r andi zed?

A | observed Sergeant Burns M randizing
M. Vasquez.
Q So you got there before there was any

M randi zati on?
A | got there, yes.
Q And did there cone a tine when the team prepared to

transport M. Vasquez?
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A Yes.
Q And in connection with that, did they assenbl e any

clothing to your know edge?

A Yes.

Q And can you tell the Judge how that went?

A | was in and out of the --

Q | would Iike you to tell himwhat you saw.

A | saw pants being shaken out and itens falling to
t he ground.

Q And where did those pants -- excuse ne. Were did

those itens fall to the ground?
A In the bedroom In the carpeted bedroom
Q When that was happeni ng, who was shaking the pants,

do you know?

A Trooper Wal sh.

Q When that was happeni ng, where were you?

A | was either in the bedroomor in the doorway or
wal king out. | was either on the phone or I was in the
process of photographing people. | was noving around quite a

bit getting stuff done.

Q Let's just tal k about that for a second. The state
police were going to take care of the enforcenent action,
right?

A Yes.

Q You said you were going to have basically
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adm ni strative duties?
A Yes.
Q So did you have a role in determ ni ng whether or

not one of the subjects was the target?

A Very much so, yes.
Q And how was t hat done?
A It was by photograph, by identification. |[I'd never

seen M. Vasquez before. So | had to confirmthat we had the
right person and that the other persons in the -- that were

in the apartnment were not involved in this case.

Q And was that your job to do?
A Yes.
Q And what about conmunicating to a command post or

case agent or sonething that you had a person in custody?
A | responded via radio and cell phone.
Q And did you have other communications with the
command post or whatever it is during the course of the

oper ati on?

A Yes.

Q So you were the one who had to do that?

A Yes.

Q And you nentioned that you took some photographs of

t he people at the scene?
A Yes.

Q And you al so took -- did you take other photographs
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as wel | ?
A Yes.
Q And so you had stuff to do it that was your own

stuff to do, right?

A Yes.

Q So while you're doing that, you said you saw t he
pants bei ng shaken?

A Yes.

Q Do you -- did you see the objects that fell from

t he pants?

A Yes.

Q And did you recogni ze what any of them were?

A Yes.

Q Coul d you tell the Judge what they were or what did

t hey appear to you to be?

A Retail heroin in retail heroin packaging, as well
as cash.
Q And once you had seen the heroin and the cash, what

if anything did you do?

A | began to process both the heroin and the cash
into DEA evidence.

Q We'l|l get back to that. Ws there a point IN which
you were able to see other suspected contraband?

A Yes.

Q How di d that happen?
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A W went to get himadditional clothing, a shirt and
pants, or shorts, or sonething else for himto where. And
right next to the bed was his | aundry basket. And on top of
the laundry basket there was a zi ppered bag that was open
with a large quantity of heroin and some cash in it.

Q So is it your testinony that you were able to see
these itens on the top of the |aundry basket?

A. Yes, in plain view

Q How do you recogni ze the substance that was there
as heroin?

A Based on ny training and experience and know edge
of this case, it was -- it | ooked |ike a whol esal e package,
or packages of heroin.

Q Did soneone take that heroin -- was there anything
with the heroin that you could see?

A There was sonme cash with it.

Q And di d anybody take that, seize it?

A Yes.

Q Who did that?

A Mysel f, with Sergeant Burns w tnessing.

Q Now, you indicated that you took sone phot ographs
at the scene, right?

A Yes.

Q Can | just show you Governnent's Exhibit 1. Can

you tell nme what that is?
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A Yes, that's M. Vasquez.
Q And Governnment Exhibit --
THE COURT: 1 is all right in, is that right?

MR. HALL: Yes, these are full exhibits, Your Honor.

Q Exhi bit 4?

A That is the retail heroin that canme out of his
pocket .

Q Wiy do you say retail heroin?

A That's ready for sale for the street.

Q And what makes you say that?

A It's in single dosage gl assine envel opes that a

consuner woul d purchase on the street froma distributor

Q So these two blue things that I'mpointing to at
the top of the photograph, are those the kind of things you
were just tal king about, the retail?

A Yes.

Q And showi ng you Governnent's Exhibit 6. Can you
tell us what that is?

A That is the cash that was in the zi ppered bag that
was on the | aundry basket.

Q Aside fromthe fact that -- there's no heroin
visible there, is there?

A No.

Q Aside fromthat fact, is that basically what the

bag | ooked |ike when it was sitting on top of the laundry
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Yes.
THE COURT: |'msorry, what nunber was that?
MR HALL: 6.

You didn't unzip that bag to see inside of it?
No.

If the bag had been zipped shut, would you have

known to take it?

o >» O >» O >

t hat ?

A

No.

Did you search the apartnent?

No, we did not. | did not, no.

Did anybody el se to your know edge?
No.

And then this thing, Exhibit Nunber 7, what's

That is the whol esal e heroin packages. Based on ny

trai ning and experience, it |looks |ike 3 hundred gram

packages of heroin.

Q

Just indicate fromthe bottom of the package up,

there seemto be three sort of balls. |Is that what you're

tal ki ng about ?

A

Q
A.
Q

Yes.
And then this thing?
Yes.

The top thing which is darker?
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Correct.

Where was that situated with respect to the bag

when you first saw it?

A

Q

In the bag with the currency.

But was it -- could you tell the Judge what it

| ooked |ike? WAs it underneath the currency or where was

it?

o >» O >» O >

wer e t hey
A
Q
A

t he scene.
Q
A

It was in with the currency, anongst it.

But your testinony is that you could see it?

Yes.

Did you take any picture of it where it was?

| did not.

These pictures, that is, Exhibit 7 and Exhibit 6,
taken at the scene?

One of themwas. One was not.

VWi ch one was?

The cash, as per DEA policy, was photographed at

What is the DEA policy?

To photograph currency that you're going to seize

at the scene.

Q
called it,

A

Q

And the bul k heroin or whol esal e heroin, as you
where was that picture taken?
This was at the DEA office.

And the retail heroin, as you called it, Exhibit 4,
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where was that taken?

A This was taken in the bedroom

Q Can you say where in the bedroonf

A On the floor, the carpeted fl oor.

Q Showi ng you Governnent Exhibit 2 for

identification. Can you tell nme what that is?

A That's a picture of the other individual. | think
his name is M. Rodriguez.

Q And was he wanted as far as you were able to nake

out at the tinme?

A At the time we checked, he was not.
Q And so he was released, is that fair to say?
A He was rel eased after we confirnmed not only was he

not wanted and he wasn't one of the other individuals
involved in the case. | didn't know who this person was. So
it took a little bit of time to confirmthat this person was

not involved in the case.

Q But that was done?
A Yes.
MR. HALL: | would offer that as an exhibit, Your
Honor .

MR. WLLSON:. Did you take the photo?
THE W TNESS: Yes.
MR, WLLSON: Okay. No objection

THE COURT: Nunber 2, Government's 2 is full.
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(Wher eupon, Governnent's Exhibit Nunber 2 was
marked in full.)
Q And then Governnent's Exhibit 3 for Identification

can you tell us what that is?

A Picture of Ms. Vasquez.
Q And where was that taken?
A In the apartnent in the common area.
Q By whont
A Me.
MR HALL: 1'Ill offer that, too, Your Honor.

MR. WLLSON: No objection, Your Honor
THE COURT: Exhibit 3 will be full.
(Wher eupon, Governnent's Exhibit Nunber 3 was
marked in full.)
Q In the picture Ms. Vasquez |looks a little upset.
Can you characterize her deneanor during the tine that you

were in the apartnent?

A She was upset.

Q Was she upset the whole tine or were there highs
and | ows?

A She was crying, not hysterically, but she was upset

about the whole situation. She was upset that we were
arresting her husband, taking her husband to jail. She was
al so upset that we were taking her vehicle, which | told her,

and she got us the keys. And she was upset pretty nuch the
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whole tine we were there.

Q But al t hough upset, was she conpliant?

A Yes.

Q And was M. Vasquez conpliant, too?

A Yes.

Q Ceneral | y?

A General ly, yes.

Q So did you, while you were at the apartnent, did
you package any of the heroin?

A Yes.

Q Is that what DEA does, if they can?

A Yes.

Q And so you did it yourself?

A I didit nyself as witnessed by Sergeant Burns.

Q I want to show you what have been marked

Governnent's Exhibit 9 and 10 for identification.
MR. HALL: My | approach, Your Honor?
THE COURT: You nay.
Q Can you tell us what they are?
A This is the contents of the heroin that was taken
fromthe | aundry basket.
Q And did you put it in that bag?
A Yes.
Q That's two bags. But did you put those in those

two bags?
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A Yes, | did.
Q And prior to doing that, did you have occasion to

field test those substances?

A Yes, | did.

Q And what was the field test for?

A Positive for the presence of opiates, both of them
t est ed.

Q So they were positive for the presence of
opi at es?

A Yes.

Q And based on your training and experience, and that

presunptive field test, what did you think when you took

them what did you think those things were?

A Fairly certain this is heroin, the |large wite
package. |'mnot sure, even to this day, what this blue
substance is. | have never seen it in a blue substance. |
was extremely concerned this could be fentanyl. And |I'm
still concerned it could be fentanyl, which I believe would
test positive, | think, as an opiate. But |'ve never seen it
blue. It's definitely lighter and it's different consistency

than the ot her substance. W have not gotten the | ab report
back. So, as | sit here today, | don't know what it is.

Q Have both of those been subnmitted to the | ab and
then returned to you?

A. Yes.
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Q So the |ab has sanples that it will test, is that

fair to say?

A I think this is it. This has not been tested
yet.
Q So they haven't taken sanpl es?
A | don't believe so.
THE COURT: |'msorry. \Wen you say they haven't

t aken sanpl es.

MR. WLLSON: Your Honor, |I'mjust wondering what
the point of this is, in light of today's suppression hearing
why this is rel evant.

THE COURT: This is what he saw, as | understand it.
Overruled. Go ahead.

MR. WLLSON: In terns of the laboratory, | thought
everyt hing had been sent to the lab and we were awaiting the
reports.

THE COURT: Wiy don't you go ahead and clarify.

Q After you got this stuff back to your shop in New

Haven, was it sent to the | ab?

A Yes.
Q But there's a delay at the lab, is that fair to
say?
A Yes.
So it wasn't tested yet, right?
A It has not been tested. The seals are stil
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original.
Q But we needed it for the hearing, right?
A Yes.
Q So sonebody went back and got it for us?
A Yes.
Q And brought it here today?
A Correct.
MR. HALL: | would offer those as full exhibits.

MR. WLLSON: Your Honor, | guess | object to this.
| don't think they're relevant today. But other than that.

THE COURT: It's overruled. They nay cone in.

VWhat are they nmarked as?

MR. HALL: The big one is 9 and the smaller one is
10.

THE COURT: G ven that we're not going to keep
t hose, why don't | just |look at them now.

(Hands.)

Q And | want to show you what's been narked as
Government Exhibit 11 for identification. Can you tell us
what that is?

A This is the contents of the bag that fell out of
M. Vasquez's pants.

Q There appears to be a dark fabric object in there.
Can you tell us what that is?

A That's the cloth bag, the original cloth bag that
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contai ned all these itens.
Q And where did that conme fromw th respect to
M. Vasquez?
A The pants.
MR HALL: | will offer that as well, Your Honor.
THE COURT: This is 117
MR, HALL: Yes, Your Honor.
MR. WLLSON: No objection, Your Honor.
THE COURT: 11 will be full.
(Wher eupon, Governnent's Exhibit Nunber 11 was
marked in full.)
MR, HALL: Thank you, Judge.
Q Now, did you question -- you or anybody question
M. Vasquez at the scene aside from ascertaining his
identity?
A Yes.

Q And what did you ask hin®

A I n substance, | asked hi mwho the heroin bel onged
to.

Q And what was his response?

A That it was his.

Q Was there extensive -- was there further

guestioning of himor anybody el se there at the scene?
A There was questioni ng whet her he woul d give us

perm ssion for a consent search. There was sone di scussions
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about the property in the car that we were going to return
and take out of the car. And there was sone di scussions

about what was going to happen that day.

Q Did you participate in those discussions?
A Yes.
Q Did you have any problemw th M. Vasquez as those

di scussi ons?

A We'd gotten a little heated conversation, but
not hi ng that was out of normal cy when soneone gets arrested
six o' clock in the norning.

Q But by the tine that you all left, had that settled
down in your view?

A Yes.

Q And then did you have occasion to question
M. Vasquez subsequently at the command post?

A Yes.

Q And to your know edge, again, you saw him

M r andi zed?

A Yes.
Q And did he agree to answer your questions?
A Yes.

Q And what did you ask hinf
A | was filling out a DEA Form 202, which is a
pedi gree form nanme, date of birth, address, famly nenbers.

And one of the questions is occupation. And he said to ne
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I"ma drug deal er.

Q Beyond that, was there further questioning of
M. Vasquez before he was processed by the Marshal Service
and presented?

A Not hi ng additionally other than his pedigree

i nformation, his processing infornmation.

Q So he wasn't interrogated really about the case?
A No.
Q Now, with respect to the currency, there were two

sets of currency, right? There's the part that canme out of

hi s pocket that was in Exhibit 117?

A Yes.
Q Do you know how nuch that was?
A In his pocket was close to $7,000. $6,900. 1I'd

have to check the report. But it was a substantial anount of
noney.
Q And then the currency that was in the zi pper bag

with the heroin, do you know how nuch that was?

A About 26, 2700 dollars. A little under $3, 000.
Q What happened to that currency?

A Fromcradle to grave?

Q No. You took it, right?

A Yes.

Q And then you have guidelines or regulations or

pol i cies or sonething?
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A Yes.
What did you have to do with it?

A It was photographed in place, like |I said earlier.
Each cash exhibit was put into a self-sealing evidence
envel ope, and with a witness with ne, Sergeant Burns, who
signed the envel opes on the sealing Iine and we seal ed up
bot h noney exhibits right there at the scene.

Q And that cash is --

A That cash was transported by me back to the office
where it was converted to a check, nmade payable, and we
subjected to asset forfeiture, adm nistrative asset

forfeiture.

Q So the cash is gone?
A Yes.
Q Now, to your know edge, did any of the state police

officers create reports of the operation that norning?

A No.

Q Did you create a report of what happened that
nmor ni ng?

A Yes.

Q And how many reports did you create?

A Three or four. Three or four. The DEA Report of

I nvestigation and then sonme forns with it. So one DEA 6
Report of Investigation, a DEA 7 to put the drugs into

evidence. A DEA 7-A to put the phone and | believe an ID
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maybe into evidence. And the forfeiture paperwork for the
processing and the transfer of the noney to the Marshal
Servi ce.

Q You MENTIONED a tel ephone. WAs a tel ephone seized

at the prem ses?

A Yes.

Q VWhat ki nd of phone was it, was it a land |Iine?
A No, it was a cellular tel ephone.

Q And that was processed into evidence in DEA. Do

t hey have that?
A Yes.
MR WLLSON:. | mssed that |ast question.
MR. HALL: That was processed into evidence.
THE COURT: That being the phone?
MR HALL: Yes, Your Honor.
Q So as far as reports that reflect investigative

details, how many reports are there?

A One.

Q And who wote that?

A | did.

Q Did anybody else wite it?

A No.

Q Now, did you wite it while you were at the
prem ses?

A No.
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Where did you wite it?
At ny office.

And when did you wite it?

> O > O

Either the day of or immediately -- | started it
that day and took a day or so to finish it. Maybe two days
to finish it.

Q Now, you were not present in the apartnent for

everything that's reported in the report, isn't that right?

A That's correct.
Q So what were your sources of informtion?
A | spoke with Detective Wal sh, | spoke with Sergeant

Burns follow ng the events of the day.
Q And after you created your report, did you submt
your report to either Burns or Walsh for their review and

concurrence?

A No.

Q It's a DEA report, right?

A Yes.

Q Were you aware of any responsibility that you would

have had to submt a DEA report to a couple of state troopers

before you file it?

A There is none.
Q So how did you, in talking to Wal sh and Burns, how
did you guys communicate? | nean, all three in the sane

pl ace or can you renenber how that happened?
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A | spoke to both of themvia cell phone, or ny
of fice phone to their cell phone, | can't renmenber which,
probably cell phone. | think |I spoke to WAl sh on one or two

occasi ons and Burns on one or two occasions within the next
day or so.
Q Now, you indicated that Wal sh had gotten a pair of

pants for M. Vasquez to wear out of the house?

A Yes.

Q But you indicated that you -- that he needed nore
cl ot hi ng?

A Yes.

THE COURT: Needed nore?
MR HALL: d ot hing.

Q What was wong with the pants?

A Well, the pants had evidence in themand --

Q You didn't seize the pants, right?

A No, we did not seize the pants. Conmonly bl ue
jeans or pants |like that need a belt, and they can't have a
belt -- can't process prisoner with a belt. Can't bring a
belt into the facility. So usually we try to find a pair of
pants that woul d not have need for a belt. It was warm out.
It was sumrertine. There were shorts right there in the
| aundry basket as well as a shirt. He had no shirt on. 1In
the laundry basket right next to the bed.

Q Were there other clothes in the roomyou could
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see?

A No.

Q Coul d you see in the closets or anything, were
there other shirts and pants and stuff |ike that hangi ng
around?

A There was a cl oset door that was open and there was
nothing in there. There was no dresser, no other hanpers, no

arnoire or furniture that would be able to hold or dressers,

not hi ng.
Q Ni ght table or anything?
A No.
Q Did you happen to | ook at any of the other roons in

t he apartnent?

A Briefly. Maybe the other bedroom | was probably
maki ng a phone call, | mght have wal ked i nto another roomto
have sone privacy. | don't know what room | wal ked into, but

| didn't want to talk to people in front of the defendants.

Q Aside fromthe bed that was in that bedroom where
you encountered M. Vasquez and Ms. Vasquez, did you see any
furniture?

A No.

Q Did you see any indication that the apartnment was
actually being lived in aside fromthe bed?

A No.

Q When you saw Wal sh shaki ng the pants, you said
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these materials that are in the photograph, in addition to
sonme cash, the photograph that's in evidence, that's what

fell out of his pocket, right?

A Yes, that's what was found, yes.

Q A pouch and sonme drugs that were prepackaged for
sal e?

A Yes.

Q How did they appear to you on the floor as they

fell out? What happened?

A That phot ograph is not hundred percent -- when it
fell out it was open and some of the contents were out. That
phot ograph is by nme renoving sone of the itens and laying it
on the floor and taking a picture of it.

Q So that photograph of the stuff that fell out of
his pants that's in evidence which I think |I've given back to
the Cerk, would be Exhibit 4, you sort of staged that a
little bit?

A Staged -- | don't knowif the word staged fits. |
renoved sonme of the contents to photograph it.

MR. WLLSON: | like stage.

A I renpved sonme of the content to photograph the
contents because | thought it would be useful that day in the
i nvestigation.

Q But that's not what it | ooked |like when it canme out

of the pants?
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A No.
Q What did it ook |ike when it came out of the
pant s?
A The top was open. It was not tightly tied or tied

in any way. And anyone with any narcotics experience woul d
| ook in that bag and see that there's retail heroin in
t here.

Q Who picked it up?

A Wal sh.
Q And how did you get to see it?
A He left it where it sat on the ground and I

processed it, and put it in the evidence bag after |
phot ographed it.

Q To see that it was drugs, though? How did you end
up seeing that it was drugs? Wen did you realize it was
drugs?

A Wal sh told ne.

MR, WLLSON: Can we get one question, Your Honor
There's about three.
THE COURT: Let's try it again.

Q What did you see that led you to believe that it
was drugs?

A | saw the retail heroin packets init.

THE COURT: | saw the retail heroin packets in it?

A In the bl ack bag.
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A It was on the ground. And then | picked it up, but
| could see it anyway. It was visible.

Q Could you see it before you picked it up?

A Yes.

Q You coul d see the drugs before you picked up the
bag?

A Yes.

Q Did you seize the zipper bag?

A No.

Q That woul d be the one that's in Exhibit 11 that's
in the hanper?

A Correct.

Q You did not seize that?

A | did not.

Q Wiy not ?

A | didn't need to at the tine. There was additional
evidence to process. | didn't seize the pants. Just add
addi ti onal evidence to process.

Q Agai n, what was your job that day when you went to
100 Wntergreen or Washi ngt on Avenue?

A To arrest M. Vasquez.

Q And did you guys search the apartnent at all beyond
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what you just related to the Judge?
A No.
MR. HALL: Thank you.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR W LLSON

Q So we don't know where the zipper bag is, right?
A Is that a question?
Q It is. Correct? W don't know where the zipper

bag is, correct?

A Correct.

Q And we don't know where the jeans are, right?

A You're saying we. You're asking ne because you
m ght know where it is. | don't.

Q Fair point. You don't know where the jeans are,
right?

A Yeah.

Q Even t hough they just produced evidence of a crine

at the scene, you decided not to seize them as evi dence,

right?
A That's correct.
Q Wth the zipper bag, were you the person that found

the zi pper bag or was it sonebody else and it was brought to
your attention?
A Il initially sawit | believe.

Q You testified earlier it was on top. It was on top
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of everything in the |laundry basket clear as day?

A Yes.

Q And it was already open, is that right?

A Yes.

Q And rather than take a picture of the zipper bag as

clear as day on top of a |aundry basket, you noved it,

right?
A Yes.
Q And you took the drugs out of it, right?
A Yes.
Q And you took a picture of the noney because in part

you have a policy where you' ve got to docunent the noney,

right?
A Yes.
Q But you don't have a policy about taking pictures

of the evidence where you found it when it's so inportant
where it was found, right?

A I don't think we do have a policy. It's the
di scretion of the agents that are doing the search warrant as
per the warrant.

Q As part of your training, you' re not advised that
you shoul d capture the evidence where it's discovered rather
than nove it to another |ocation where questions can arise as
to how it was discovered and where it was di scovered?

A. If it warrants it sonetinmes we do, sonetinmes we
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don't.

Q Going into the apartnment that day, other than what
you had heard generally about the investigation, there was no
i ndication that M. Vasquez was going to have a | arge

gquantity of drugs with him is that right?

A | expect nothing and antici pate everything.
Q Vel |, you' ve been around for a while wth the
DEA?
A Yes.
Q And |'m sure you' ve had cases where you go in to do

a search or arrest and you're anticipating finding a | arge
guantity because there was a controll ed purchase or a
controlled sale or sonething right before you do the bust,
isn'"t that right?

A | do this along time and | don't anticipate.

Q Have you had those type of cases? Like a bust/buy,
buy/bust, is that right?

A I don't know what you're trying to ask. You asked
e - -

Q In your experience. |In your experience, you' ve
done buy/ bust cases, correct?

A Yes.

Q Where a transaction occurs and you go in
i medi ately to see what's there, right?

A. Not a lot. That's not a |level that we deal wth.
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Q Have you ever done it?

A | have done it. W do it to recover evidence.

Q Wth M. Vasquez, is that what had happened before
t his?

A No.

Q No one had nade a delivery, as far as you knew,

right before you crashed the door in, right?

A Not to ny know edge, no.

Q I"mgoing to put on the ELMO a docunent that's
previously marked as Defendant's Exhibit A Do you recal

t hat bei ng the house?

A | believe it is.
Q And earlier you testified about where you were
| ocated while others were going up the stairwell. Do you

remenber that?

A Yes.

Q And can you give us a reference in the picture as
to where you woul d have been at that tine?

A | was, if you could see the one-way sign to the
right, | was between that and the stairwell that they nade
entry and back and forth. M responsibility was the
perinmeter of the front and the adjacent side, adjacent
street. And there was another individual in the back
responsi ble for the back and ot her side.

Q So when you say front, you're referring to the part
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of the building that's facing us in the picture, is that

right?

A And the right side, as we're looking at it, of the
bui | di ng.

Q So you're hanging out in the corner area?

A I"'mnot really hanging out. |'m noving kind of

rapi dly between positions because we didn't have a | ot of

people to cover the place. So | was noving quite a bit.

Q Was there anybody outside with you?

A Yes.

Q Who was that?

A | believe it was a Departnent of Corrections
per son.

Q Were you there when the dog was brought in?

A Yes.

Q Were you the one -- did you say anything about

taki ng the dog out of there because he hadn't consented to

search?
A No.
Q O her than the three people in there, and the

furni shings, was there anything else of note found in the
apartnent or that you saw in the apartnent?

A O note, no.

Q We tal ked about drugs. W tal ked about packagi ng.

We tal ked about a little bit of furniture. There's three
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people. Anything else that conmes to m nd when you recall the

apart ment ?

A No.
Q Did you open any of the folds to actually see what
was in those folds that we've seen in exhibits -- in the

picture with the pouch? D d you open any of those blue folds

to see if there actually was heroin inside or anything |ike

t hat ?
A Yes.
Q And you did that in the apartnent?
A No.
Q Where did you do that?
A At the DEA.
Q Were you the person that was trying to get
M. Vasquez dressed or is that one of the other agents?
A I was hel pi ng.
Q Were you in the roomwhen the pants were picked up

and shook?

A | was in the vicinity. Like | said earlier, | was
either in the doorway or in the room

Q Show you a picture, Defense Exhibit B. Does that
hel p you renenber or you don't renenber?

A | don't knowif this is the apartnent.

Q You don't recall this being the apartnent?

A | recall the apartnent on August 15th or July 15th,
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and it | ooks very different.

Q There's no carpeting in the photo, right?

A That's correct.

Q O herwise, is it what you recall?

A It is simlar to what | recall

Q Just |looking at this picture, does that help you

remenber where you were when the pants were shaken and the

bag fell out?

A | was probably standing right by the door to the
bedr oom
Q Were you a person in authority at the scene,

meani ng, would you tell Trooper WAl sh what to do or sonebody
there what to do or no?

A | was one of the supervisors there, but | was in
charge of ne. And the State Police were in charge of State
Police. M and Sergeant Burns would, if anything needed to
be done, we would consult.

Q You tal ked about doing the report. You weren't
sure if you did it, how quickly you did it. You said maybe a
coupl e of days.

A I|"mpretty sure | started it that day. That's what
| usually do.

Q Do you renenber when you finished it?

A I'"d have to | ook at the report itself.

Q Utimately sone sort of supervisor would sign off
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on it?
A Yes, sir
Q Is it your practice to sit and do a report in one

finish or, you know, do you deal with phone calls, maybe cone
back to go it? How do you handl e that?
A On this occasion how | handled it or in general?

In this case | think | cane to it several tines.

Q And each tinme you do that, do you save a draft?

A | hope | woul d.

Q General good conputer practice, right?

A Yes.

Q And the draft that you provided to your supervisor

woul d that be your final draft?

A It wouldn't be a draft 1'd give to ny supervisor.

It would be the final copy that | signed. Unless he had
corrections, return it and make the corrections.

Q And you'd agree with ne that a report fromthis
type of event, it's inportant to have all the key information
in that report, correct?

A Sure, it's inportant.

Q You know that ultimately M. Vasquez is going to be
prosecuted, the reports are going to be provided as part of
the case, right?

A Yes.

Q And you know soneone |ike ne or sone other defense
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| awyer is going to take a look at it, right?

A Yes.

Q And ultinmately the Judge may be called to rely on
the report or ook at that report in deciding what happened
on the day of the arrest, right?

A Yes.

Q So you want to nmake sure that report is nice and
t hor ough, right?

A As thorough as | can get it.

Q Before we get to that. So you're outside and they
do the entry, right?

A Yes.

Q But you get up there even before -- nmaybe a nonent

before M. Vasquez is Mrandized, right?

A Maybe a little before.

Q Because you hear him being Mrandized, right?

A Yes, and | see it.

Q And you see it. And is generally the Mrandi zi ng

of soneone one of the first things that happens when soneone
Is arrested?

A No, | would not characterize that at all. Safety
first. Making sure they' re okay. Making sure our people are
okay. And when we have a nonment of pause, usually when
they're clear and see what we're tal ki ng about and under st and

what's going on comng into your house early in the norning,
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some people tend to be a little disheveled. It was a few

m nutes | ater.

Q

| just want to put a docunment in front of you.

Just take a couple of nmonments. Do you recogni ze that

docunent ?

A

> O >» O > O

el se does.

Q

Yes.

VWhat is it?

It's ny report of investigation.

And it's redacted a little bit?

Yes.

Did you redact it?

| don't know. Sonetinmes | do, sonetines someone
I don't know whether | did this one.

You see on the bottomof the first page it just

says approved and Uri Shafir here?

> O >

Q

Yes.
And the date there is July 217
Yes.

Do you recall whether you provided M. Shafir with

the report and then nmade any changes to it after talking with

hi m about
A.
Q

peopl e?

it?
Not to ny nenory, no.

Are you in a position now where you supervi se ot her

Yes.
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Q And so do peopl e sonetinmes provide you with
reports?

A Yes.

Q And then you have to sign off as the supervisor?

A Yes.

Q And when you're checking them over -- you check

t hem over when they give themto you, right?
A Yes.
Q And if you see sonething that |ooks like it's

m ssing, do you say what about this and this needs to be

fixed?
A No, | don't think mssing stuff, unless | was
there. Agent Shafir wasn't there. | don't know if he'd be

abl e to have know edge anything was m ssing, unless it was a
fundanmental step in our evidence processing, a procedura
step. Maybe if we didn't put it in the bag, he' d probably
say why don't you describe putting it in the bag, but no.

MR. WLLSON: Your Honor, |'ve |abeled one with
Def endant's Exhibit C. It's a copy of the same thing that's
in front of himand I'd offer it as a full exhibit.

THE COURT: Any objection, M. Hall?

MR. HALL: Just checking real quick

No objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Defense Exhibit Cwll be full.

(Wher eupon, Defendant's Exhibit C was marked in
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full.)
THE COURT: And you've got the actual exhibit?
MR WLLSON: | do, Your Honor
THE COURT: Make sure you give it to Ms. Johnson.
You don't have an extra copy for me, do you?
MR, HALL: | wote on the bottomof it, Judge, just
exhi bit whatever it was.
MR. WLLSON: | gave himthe stanped one.
BY MR W LLSON
Q Were you involved in seizing the car?
THE COURT: Can | just have one nonent to read it?
MR, WLLSON: Certainly, Your Honor
THE COURT: Ckay. \Wenever you're ready.
BY VMR W LLSON
Q The car that was seized, was there a plan to seize
the car before the arrest even occurred or was that a product
of the events?
A | was told to seize the car if it's there.
Q Do you know ul ti mately whet her that car was
returned or not?
A I don't know. | know | processed it for
forfeiture.
Q So you're part of a team You go to M. Vasquez's
house. But there's a whole bunch of other teans that day

too, right?
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A Yes.

Q Were you involved in trying to go and then arrest
anybody el se in connection with the case or was it just
M. Vasquez for your teanf?

A My team had additional responsibilities, but | also
had responsibilities wwth M. Vasquez to process him So
t hey m ght have been cut | oose to do sonething el se but ne,
as a nmenber of the team was handling M. Vasquez and
eventual |y the evidence | seized.

Q So you're at M. Vasquez's place at 6. You didn't
have to be sonmewhere else at 9 to bust down anot her door or

anything like that, right?

A No.
Q What were you wearing when this happened?
A | was either wearing a visible DEA raid ballistic

vest or | was wearing a ballistic vest with a DEA raid jacket
on. Wth the weather, it depends on the weather. | nore
likely had a vest wiwth visible police on both sides, front
and back.

Q Do you recall when you entered the apartnent
your sel f whether you had a firearmdrawn or anything out |ike
that or were your hands free?

A | did not have ny gun drawn that day at all

Q What kind of firearmdo you usually have in that

situation?
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A A d ock pistol
Q Do you recall the firearns that were being used by

ot hers that day?

A Yes.

Q Di d anyone have sonething |arger than a handgun?
A | don't recall. | don't know.

Q When you do these sort of entries with a group of

people, is it the usual practice for someone to have a nore
serious firearmin case there's a probl en?

A I can just talk to practice. DEA practice is
sonmeone usually has a long gun, arifle. And statew de
probably does the sane thing, at |east one person has arifle
either in the car or with the enforcenent team as policy.

Not policy, but as a good practice.

Q You just don't specifically recall fromthis day?
A | do not.
Q Do you recall whether anyone was wearing any sort

of helnmet or head gear or sonething on their face other than
a basebal | cap?

A | don't believe so.

Q Were you the person that took M. Vasquez fromthe
scene to wherever he was goi ng next?

A No.

Q Who did that?

A | do not know. One of the people. Could have been
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the Correction guy with us, that was with us also, or it
coul d have been a conbi nation of the state police and soneone
else. 1 don't know. | saw back at the assenbly area.

Q Is there normally a Corrections officer as part of
t hese teans or was that unusual ?

A Not unusual for |arge take-downs that we have.
They' ve assisted us before in processing and handling the
prisoners.

Q Are they specifically part of the Statew de Task

Force or are they brought in for the day?

A They are brought in for the day.

Q You' ve had a chance to review your report, right?
A Yes.

Q And does that appear to be the report you created

followi ng this event?

A It appears to be, yes.

Q You said sonmething -- let nme start again.

Assistant U S. Attorney Hall asked you about

whet her Ms. Vasquez was cooperative or conbative and you
said, no, she was fine. And then he asked you about
M. Vasquez and you said, well, and you said somnethi ng not
out of normalcy for sonmeone who gets arrested at 6:00 in the
norning. That's what | wote dowmn. Do you recall that part
of your testinony?

A. Yes.
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Q In your experience, people who get arrested at 6:00
in the norning -- what did you nean, | guess, when you said
not out of normalcy for someone getting arrested at 6:00 in
t he norni ng?

A They' re usual ly argunentative, not know ng why
they're being arrested. That we have no right to cone in
their residence to get them Those kind of argunents. Those

ki nd of exchanges.

Q How nmany of these have you done over the years,
roughl y?

A Hundr eds.

Q Hundreds. Lots and lots. How often do you show up

and everyone's awake and ready to go?

A Depends what tine we're going.

Q When you're there at 5:45 in the norning, how often
i s whoever you're going to get there and ready to go? |Is
that a regular thing or is it nore often --

A There's no saying what it is. If it's wintertine,
people stay in bed early in the norning. |If it's sumer
time, people tend to be up earlier in the norning because
it's lighter out. Sonetines they' re asleep, sonetines
they're not. 1've been to a door 3:00 in the norning and
Everyone was up. |'ve been at 3:00 in the afternoon and
everyone's been asleep. There's no rhyne or reason to it.

Q Wul d you agree with ne, though, that if you were
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going in the mddle of the day nore often people are up, and
if you're going at 6:00 in the norning nore often people are
asl eep or just inmediately responsive?

A That's fair at times. But nore likely they' Il be
at their domcile or where they're residing early in the
nor ni ng, whet her up or havi ng breakfast or showering, but
they' Il usually be at a honme or at a residence |ocation.

MR WLLSON: |If | could have a nonment, Your Honor ?
THE COURT: Yes.
MR. WLLSON: Your Honor, | have nothing further at
this tinme.
THE COURT: Redirect.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR HALL:

Q This Ui Shafir fellow, he was your supervisor at
that time? He's the guy on the report.

A Yes. He was ny supervisor that signed this report,

but I'd been pronoted at that tinme actually.

Q But he signed the report as the supervisor?
A Correct.
Q Did he participate in this operation, the arrest of

M. Vasquez?

A No.
Q He wasn't there?
A He was not.
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MR HALL: | don't have anything el se, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You can step down.

MR. HALL: That woul d concl ude the Governnent's

presentati on.

THE COURT: as discussed, we will reconvene |

we said March 29 at 9:00.
Thank you very nuch.

(Concl uded.)

Ve' ||

be in recess.

t hi nk
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